
City of Grand Island

Tuesday, September 11, 2007

Council Session Packet

City Council: Mayor:
Margaret Hornady

City Administrator:
Dale Shotkoski - Interim

City Clerk:
RaNae Edwards

T
u

7:00:00 PM
Council Chambers - City Hall

100 East First Street

Tom Brown
Larry Carney
John Gericke
Peg Gilbert
Joyce Haase
Robert Meyer
Mitchell Nickerson
Bob Niemann

Fred Whitesides
Jose Zapata

Call to Order

City of Grand Island City Council



A - SUBMITTAL OF REQUESTS FOR FUTURE ITEMS
Individuals who have appropriate items for City Council consideration should complete the Request for Future Agenda 
Items form located at the Information Booth. If the issue can be handled administratively without Council action, 
notification will be provided. If the item is scheduled for a meeting or study session, notification of the date will be given.

B - RESERVE TIME TO SPEAK ON AGENDA ITEMS
This is an opportunity for individuals wishing to provide input on any of tonight's agenda items to reserve time to speak. 
Please come forward, state your name and address, and the Agenda topic on which you will be speaking.

MAYOR COMMUNICATION
This is an opportunity for the Mayor to comment on current events, activities, and issues of interest to the community.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Invocation - Interim Pastor Harold Stromer, Messiah Lutheran Church, 708 North 
Locust Street

This is an open meeting of the Grand Island City Council. The City of Grand Island abides by the Open Meetings Act 
in conducting business. A copy of the Open Meetings Act is displayed in the back of this room as required by state 
law.

The City Council may vote to go into Closed Session on any agenda item as allowed by state law.

City of Grand Island City Council



Item D1
#2007-BE-5 - Consideration of Determining Benefits for Business 
Improvement District #3
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Determining Benefits for Business Improvement District 

No. 3, South Locust Street, Hwy 34 to Stolley Park Road, 
and Approving the Assessments 

 
Item #’s:  D-1 & F-1 
 
Presenter(s): Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
 

Background  
 
In March, 1999, the City Council adopted Ordinance #8452 creating Business 
Improvement District No.3, South Locust Street, Hwy 34 to Stolley Park Road. The 
District was established for a 10-year period with anticipated total assessment revenues of 
$314,447. The 2007-2008 Budget, as approved by Council on July 24, 2007, provides for 
special assessments in the amount of $4.31 per front footage for a total of $42,260 for the 
9,805 front footage. 
 

Discussion 
 
The City Council, in its’ capacity as the Board of Equalization, is required to determine 
the benefits of the District and take action on the assessments as provided for in 
Ordinance #9136. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the benefits of the District and related assessments.   
      2.         Deny the benefits and assessments.   



 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Counc il approve the benefits of Business 
Improvement District No. 3 and related assessments. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Board of Equalization: Approve the benefits accruing to Business Improvement District 
No. 3 as presented. 
 
Ordinance:  Approve the assessments as provided for in Ordinance #9136. 



 
 

Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 6, 2007 ¤   City Attorney  

R E S O L U T I O N   2007-BE-5 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, sitting as a Board of Equalization for Business Improvement 
District No. 3, after due notice having been given thereof, that we find and adjudge: 
 
 That the benefits accruing to the real estate in such district to be the total sum of 
$42,260.29; and 
 
 Such benefits are equal and uniform; and 
 
 According to the equivalent frontage of the respective lots, tracts, and real estate 
within such Business Improvement District No. 3, such benefits are the sums set opposite the 
several descriptions as follows: 
 
Name Description Assessment 

Jerry L. & Janet C. Loney West 273 feet of Lot 1 (except City), Burch Subdivision 603.83 

Larry W. Coffey West 125 feet of Lots 2, 3 and 4 (except City), Burch 
Subdivision 

775.89 

Michael S. & Sandra S. Williams  Lot 5 (except City), Burch Subdivision 515.99 

Michael S. & Sandra S. Williams  Lot 1 (except City), Burch Second Subdivision 605.56 

The Eating Establishment Lot 1 (except City), Runza Subdivision 667.45 

Bradley L. Shanahan 
Teresa K. Brooks 

East 100 feet of Lot 12, and east 100 feet of Lot 13, 
(except City) Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

862.00 

Charles L. Hancock & Robert D. 
Hancock 

Lot 14 (except City), Holcomb's Highway Homes 
Subdivision 

472.20 

Ryan & Darcy Hansen Lot 15 (except City), Holcomb's Highway Homes 
Subdivision 

467.38 

Dianna D. Duering Lot 1, Bartz Subdivision 469.79 

Gary & Linda Shovlain Lot 3, Shovlain Second Subdivision 669.64 

Rickie D. & Susan J. Noden South 52 feet of Lot 19 and north 1 foot of Lot 20, 
Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

225.54 

Video Kingdom of Grand Island, Inc. South 108 feet of Lot 20 (except City), Holcomb's 
Highway Homes Subdivision 

469.88 

Kershner Properties, LLC North 60 feet of Lot 22 (except City), Holcomb's 
Highway Homes Subdivision 

225.32 

Charles A. Douthit  Lot 21 (except City), Holcomb's Highway Homes 
Subdivision 

469.88 

Da-ly Properties, LLC South 98 feet of Lot 23 and north 12 feet of Lot 24, 
(except City) Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

474.10 

Kershner Properties, LLC South 49 feet of Lot 22 and north 11 feet of Lot 23 
(except City), Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

258.60 



 
 

RESOLUTION 20070-BE-5 
 

 
- 2 - 

 

Llamas Enterprises 
Alina Hernandez 

South 97 feet of Lot 24, Lot 25, and north 38 feet of Lot 
26, (except City) Holcomb's Highway Homes 
Subdivision 

1,051.38 

Marion D. Larsen Rev. Trust North 79 feet of Lot 27 and south 71 feet of Lot 26, 
(except City) Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

646.76 

McCloud Super 8 Motel Inc. Part of Lot 25 (except City), Matthews Subdivision 1,066.64 

William E. & Sandra L. Lawrey Lot 1 (except City), Garrison Subdivision 974.62 

Cedar Street Investment Co. Lot 2, Mil-Nic Second Subdivision 1,179.22 

Paulsen and Sons Inc. Lots 1 & 28 (except City), Lots 2, 3, 26, and 27, Roush's 
Pleasantville Terrace Subdivision 

862.26 

Gary E. Shovlain Lot 2, Shovlain Second Subdivision 517.29 

Rex E. & Jonadyne A. Carpenter Lot 1 [200' x 400'] (except City), Woodland First 
Subdivision 

859.50 

Rex E. & Jonadyne A. Carpenter Lot 2 [200' x 400'] (except City), Woodland First 
Subdivision 

862.17 

Equitable Federal Savings Bank of 
Grand Island 

Lot 3 (except City), Woodland First Subdivision 862.26 

Danny K. Oberg Lot 4 (except City), Woodland First Subdivision 857.86 

Darryl Wilhelmi Lot 5 (except City), Woodland First Subdivision 862.26 

Richard S. Rasmussen, Jr., et al North 50 feet of east 260 feet of Lot 6 (except City), 
Woodland First Subdivision 

214.85 

Pam Ehlers South 126 feet of east 260 feet of Lot 6 (except City), 
Woodland First Subdivision 

545.78 

Alpha Corporation East 260 feet of Lot 8 (except City), Woodland First 
Subdivision 

902.73 

Stratford Plaza, L.L.C. Lot 11 (except City), Woodland Second Subdivision 2,340.85 

Bosselman Inc. Lot 8, Woodland Second Subdivis ion 643.66 

Bennett Properties Inc. Lot 9, Woodland Second Subdivision 646.63 

Laub-Otto, LLC Lot 10, Woodland Second Subdivision 684.82 

Jack E. Rasmussen, Joanne L. 
Rasmussen, Richard S. Rasmussen, June 
E. & William Blackburn 

Lot 1 except north 25 feet of east 260 feet (except City), 
Woodland Third Subdivision 

322.91 

Dale & Kathleen Arp North 25 feet of east 260 feet of Lot 1 and all of Lot 2, 
(except City) Woodland Third Subdivision 

538.45 

McDermott & Miller, PC Lot 1 (except City), Woodridge South Subdivision 1,088.36 

Marion D. Larsen Rev. Trust Lot 2 (except City), Woodridge South Subdivision 468.41 

Ming Zhou, Nghi Trien Section 27-11-9; Part of Lot 1 MLD (except City) 427.60 

Milton Motels LLC Part of N1/2, SW1/4, SW1/4 of Section 27-11-9 2,172.28 

Platte Valley State Bank & Trust 
Company 

Lot 1, Equestrian Meadows Subdivision 768.13 



 
 

RESOLUTION 20070-BE-5 
 

 
- 3 - 

 

Chlonate LLC Part of Lot 1 (except City), Desert Rose Subdivision 1,843.09 

Theodore J. Robb Part of NW1/4, SW1/4 (except City) of Section 27-11-9 1,448.20 

MIK, LLC Part of NW1/4 of SW1/4 of Section 27-11-9 and part of 
Lot 4 Island (except City) 

1,331.70 

Community Redevelopment Authority Part of Lot 1 MLD in Section 27-11-9 629.95 

John L. & Beth A. French Lot 1 (except City), Knox Subdivision 602.67 

All Faiths Funeral Home LLC Part of NW1/4, NW1/4, SW1/4 of Section 27-11-9 1,034.40 

Pharmacy Properties, LLC Lot 2, Equestrian Meadows Subdivision 624.91 

Ronald J. & Lori D. Willis  Part of NE1/4 of NE1/4 (except City) of Section 28-11-9 431.00 

Theodore J. & Mason D. Robb Lot 2 (except City), Knox Third Subdivision 569.09 

Ted Robb Lot 3 (except City), Knox Third Subdivision 332.13 

O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Lot 2 (except City), Runza Subdivision 670.81 

Theodore J. & Mason D. Robb Lot 1 (except City), Knox Third Subdivis ion 664.39 

MA Faulkner Trust Lot 3, Equestrian Meadows Subdivision 793.82 

Wayne Vanosdall Sanitation Part of N1/2, SW1/4, SW1/4 of Section 27-11-9 653.40 

TOTAL  $42,260.29 

 
_ _ _ 

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, on September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Margaret Hornady, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item D2
#2007-BE-6 - Consideration of Determining Benefits for Business 
Improvement District #4
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Determining Benefits for Business Improvement District 

No. 4, South Locust Street from Stolley Park Road to 
Fonner Park Road, and Approving the Assessments 

 
Item #’s:  D-2 & F-2 
 
Presenter(s): Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
 

Background  
 
In July, 2002, the City Council adopted Odinance No. 8751 creating Business 
Improvement District No. 4, South Locust Street, Stolley Park Road to Fonner Park 
Road. The 2007-2008 Budget, as approved by Council on July 24, 2007, provides for 
special assessments in the amount of $4.48 per front footage for a total of $22,175 for the 
4,950 front footage. 
 

Discussion 
 
The City Council, in its’ capacity as the Board of Equalization, is required to determine 
the benefits of the District and take action on the assessments as provided for in 
Ordinance #9137.  
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the benefits for the District and related assessments.    
      2.         Deny the benefits and assessments.   

 



Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the benefits of Business 
Improvement District No. 4 and related assessments. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Board of Equalization: Approve the benefits accruing to Business Improvement District 
No. 4 as presented. 
 
Ordinance:  Approve the assessments as provided for in Ordinance #9137. 



 
 

Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 6, 2007 ¤   City Attorney  

R E S O L U T I O N   2007-BE-6 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, sitting as a Board of Equalization for Business Improvement 
District No. 4, after due notice having been given thereof, that we find and adjudge: 
 
 That the benefits accruing to the real estate in such district to be the total sum of 
$22,174.87; and 
 
 Such benefits are equal and uniform; and 
 
 According to the equivalent frontage of the respective lots, tracts, and real estate 
within such Business Improvement District No. 4, such benefits are the sums set opposite the 
several descriptions as follows: 
 
Name Description Assessment 

Michael J. & Mandy Westerby Part of Lot 1, Janisch Subdivision 537.42 

Niels McDermott Lot 1 (except E 10 feet), Brownell Subdivision 223.91 

Wiltgen Corp. II Lot 5, Kirkpatrick Subdivision 316.06 

Wiltgen Corp. II Lot 6, Kirkpatrick Subdivision 311.32 

E.P.S. Investments Part of Lot 1 (except City), Labelindo Second 
Subdivision 

1,252.52 

James Scott Zana Part of Lot 1, R & R Subdivision 630.43 

Fontenelle Oil Co. #210 E1/2, S1/2 of Block 9 (except City), Pleasant Home 
Subdivision 

628.90 

Locust Street LLC Block 16 (except City), Pleasant Home Subdivision 1,252.38 

M & W Investment Co. Part of Lots 1 and 2, Roepke Subdivis ion 691.44 

M & W Investment Co. Part of Lot 1, Roepke Second Subdivision 203.84 

Edwards Building Corp. Lot 1 (except City), Fonner Subdivision 671.73 

Grand Island Associates, LLC Lot 1, Fonner Fourth Subdivision 2,194.98 

5500 L Street Properties Co. Lot 5 (except City), Fonner Second Subdivision 895.37 

5500 L Street Properties Co. Lot 6 (except City), Fonner Second Subdivision 1,792.67 

Three Circle Irrigation Inc. Part of Lot 1 and Part of Lot 3, Fonner Third 
Subdivision 

1,522.44 

Edwards Building Corp. 

Kenneth W. & Rosemary Staab 

Replatted part of Lot 3, Fonner Third Subdivision 

Part of the SE1/4, SE1/4, Miscellaneous Tracts, 21-11-9 
(except City) 

627.20 

232.87 

GIPH Restaurants LLC Part of SE1/4, SE1/4 of Section 21-11-9 (except City) 605.20 

Michael J. & Carey M. Reilly Lot 1, JNW Subdivision 689.92 

Edwards Building Corp. Lot 1, JNW Second Subdivision 742.92 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2007-BE-6 
 

 
- 2 - 

 

Sax Pizza of America, Inc. Lot 2 (except City), Sax's Subdivision 484.29 

Cindy Braddy Part of SE1/4, SE1/4 of Section 21-11-9 (except City) 605.96 

Arec 7, LLC Part of SE1/4, SE1/4 of Section 21-11-9 (except City) 895.91 

Sax Pizza of America, Inc. Lot 3 (except City), Sax's Subdivision 558.61 

O. Michael & Laurel Z. Toukan Lot 3, Goodwill Fifth Subdivision 531.06 

O. Michael & Laurel Z. Toukan Lot 2, Goodwill Fifth Subdivision 294.34 

Hall County Livestock Improvement 
Association 

Part of SW1/4, SW1/4 and Part NW1/4, SW1/4  (except 
city) in Section 22-11-9 

1,484.85 

Byco Inc. Part of Lot 2, R & R Subdivision 624.29 

Preferred Enterprises LLC Part of Lot 2 (except City), Fonner Fourth Subdivision 672.04 

TOTAL  $22,174.87 

 
_ _ _ 

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, on September 11 2007 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Margaret Hornady, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



Item D3
#2007-BE-7 - Consideration of Determining Benefits for Business 
Improvement District #5
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Determining Benefits for Business Improvement District 

No. 5, Downtown, and Approving the Assessments 
 
Item #’s:  D-3 & F-3 
 
Presenter(s): Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
 

Background  
 
In May, 2003, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 8812 creating Business 
Improvement District No. 5, Downtown. The 2007-2008 Budget, as approved by Council 
on July 24, 2007, provides for special assessments on land and real property in the 
District as of January 1, 2007 in the amount of $.311152 per $100 of real property. The 
total taxable value of $ 25,710,908 provides for assessments of $80,000. 
 

Discussion 
 
The City Council, in its’ capacity as the Board of Equalization, is required to determine 
the benefits of the District and take action on the assessments as provided for in 
Ordinance #9138. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the benefits for the District and related assessments. 
      2.         Deny the benefits and assessments. 
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the benefits of Business 
Improvement District No. 5 and related assessments. 
 



Sample Motion 
 
Board of Equalization: Approve the benefits accruing to Business Improvement District 
No. 5 as presented.  
 
Ordinance:  Approve the assessments as provided for in Ordinance #9138. 



 Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N   2007-BE-7 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND 

ISLAND, NEBRASKA, sitting as a Board of Equalization for Business Improvement District No. 5, after 

due notice having been given according to law, that we find and adjudge: 

 1. The benefits accruing to the real estate in such Business Improvement District No. 5 is the 

total sum of $80,000.06; and 

 2. According to the assessed value of the respective lots, tracts, and real estate within such 

Business Improvement District, such benefits are the sums set opposite the several descriptions as follows: 

Name Description Assessment 

Kinder Morgan Interstate Gas 
Transmission 

Centrally Assessed 23.22 

Northwestern Energy Centrally Assessed 506.62 

Alltel Nebraska, Inc. Centrally Assessed 4.51 

Qwest Corporation Centrally Assessed 3,872.61 

AT&T Communications Centrally Assessed 61.11 

MCI Worldcom Network Services 
Inc. 

Centrally Assessed 8.95 

NPCR, Inc. d/b/a Nextel Partners Centrally Assessed 38.44 

IPCS Wireless, LLC Centrally Assessed Exempt 

George Jay Jorgensen Beckby N 100.5' E2/3 Lot 1, Block 54, Original Town 304.19 

George Jay Jorgensen Beckby S 31.9' E2/3 Lot 1, Block 54, Original Town  73.06 

Wing Properties Inc. W1/3 Lot 1, Block 54, Original Town 24.21 

R. Dennis & Patricia A. Norris, 
Trustees 

Lot 2, Block 54, Original Town 589.21 

John W. & Teresa A. Wayne N1/2 of W2/3 Lot 6, N1/2 Lot 5, Block 54, Original 
Town 

484.92 

Gus Katrouzos S 60' W1/3 Lot 5, Block 54, Original Town 88.98 

Gus Katrouzos S 60' W 16' E2/3 Lot 5, Block 54, Original Town 72.59 

Nickie J. Kallos E 28' S1/2 Lot 5; N 6' W 38' S1/2 Lot 5, Block 54, 
Original Town 

164.51 



- 2 - 
  

Nickie J. Kallos W 22' S1/2 Lot 6; Block 54, Original Town 131.68 

R. Dennis & Patricia A. Norris, 
Trustees 

E 22' W 44' S1/2 Lot 6; E 22' Lot 6, Block 54, Original 
Town 

403.59 

R. Dennis & Patricia A. Norris, 
Trustees 

W1/3 Lot 7, Block 54, Original Town 324.17 

R. Dennis & Patricia A. Norris, 
Trustees 

C1/3 Lot 7, Block 54, Original Town 315.58 

Wing Properties Inc. E1/3 Lot 7, Lot 8 (except City), Block 54, Original 
Town 

1,109.81 

Nathan Detroit, Inc. N1/2 Lot 1, Block 55, Original Town 503.49 

Nathan Detroit, Inc. N 44' S1/2 Lot 1, Block 55, Original Town 336.24 

Virginia Irvine S 22' Lot 1, Block 55, Original Town 103.56 

Russell L. Hoetfelker S1/2 W1/2 Lot 3; S1/2 Lot 4, Block 55, Original Town 388.40 

Downtown Center LLC N 67.5' Lot 5, Block 55, Original Town 52.62 

Matthew E. & Janelle A. 
Armstrong 

N 20' S 64.5' Lot 5, Block 55, Original Town 121.88 

Erivas Enterprises LLC S 44.5’ Lot 5, Block 55, Original Town 229.17 

Famos Construction, Inc. W2/3 Lot 6, Block 55, Original Town 197.35 

Arthur & Jeanene Campos E1/3 Lot 6, Block 55, Original Town 149.69 

Prairie Winds Art Center, Inc. W1/3 Lot 7, Block 55, Original Town 233.98 

Terrence R. Merchen E2/3 Lot 7, Block 55, Original Town 166.28 

Thomas W. & Angela J. Ziller W1/3 Lot 8, Block 55, Original Town 104.85 

Thomas W. & Angela J. Ziller C1/3 Lot 8, Block 55, Original Town 103.71 

Thomas W. Ziller E1/3 Lot 8, Block 55, Original Town 464.41 

Downtown Center LLC N 68' Lot 1; Lot 2; E1/2 Lot 3, Block 56, Original 
Town 

176.81 

Downtown Center LLC N 22' of S 42', W 6' S 20', Lot 1, Block 56, Original 
Town 

15.86 

Downtown Center LLC N 22' of S 64' Lot 1, Block 56, Original Town 14.65 

Downtown Center LLC S 20' of E 60' Lot 1, Block 56, Original Town 12.10 

Carl & Susan A. Mayhew W1/3 Lot 5, Block 56, Original Town 268.48 

R & B Capital Enterprises LLC E2/3 Lot 5, Block 56, Original Town 466.32 

Helen E. & James A. Pohl W2/3 Lot 6, Block 56, Original Town 391.15 

Bette M. Tiner E1/3 Lot 6, Block 56, Original Town 171.10 

Duane A. & Dee Ann Johnson Lot 7, Block 56, Original Town 384.15 

Downtown Center LLC Lot 8, Block 56, Original Town 1,811.50 



- 3 - 
  

J & B Rentals LLC Lot 1, Ziller Subdivision 516.63 

The Grand Island Foundation, Inc. E2/3 Lot 6, Block 57, Original Town Exempt 

JEO Building Company Lot 7, Block 57, Original Town 810.13 

Overland Building Corp. Lot 8, Block 57, Original Town 1,192.02 

FirsTier Bank National Assoc. Lots 1 & 2, Block 58, Original Town 341.57 

FirsTier Bank National Assoc. N1/2 Lot 3; N1/2 Lot 4, Block 58, Original Town 119.87 

FirsTier Bank National Assoc. Lot 5; W 22' Lot 6, Block 58, Original Town 1,638.59 

FirsTier Bank National Assoc. S1/2 Lot 3; S1/2 Lot 4, Block 58, Original Town 127.26 

Darrell & Joyce Albers Lot 1, Jensen Subdivision 159.08 

M SQ Designs, Inc. W1/3 Lot 7, Block 58, Original Town 246.00 

James K. Keeshan C1/3 Lot 7, Block 58, Original Town 148.74 

Jesus G. & Victoria Galvan Lot 1, Prensa Latina Subdivision 105.81 

Eliseo & Jessica Calderon Lot 2, Prensa Latina Subdivision 106.81 

Mark A. Stelk Lot 4, Prensa Latina Subdivision 331.14 

Margoth Carpio & Brenda Eugenia 
Panameno 

Lot 3, Prensa Latina Subdivision 182.30 

Mead Bldg. Centers of G.I. N 102.5' Lot 1; Lot 2, Block 59, Original Town 386.98 

H & H Land Co. S 29.5' Lot 1, Block 59, Original Town 19.64 

Mead Bldg. Centers of G.I. S 99' Lot 4; Lot 3, Block 59, Original Town 173.20 

Mead Bldg. Centers of G.I. N 33' Lot 4, Block 59, Original Town 177.36 

Daniel H. & Ronald L. Eakes, 
Trustees 

Lot 5, Block 59, Original Town 264.98 

Chanh Ty Ngo & My T Nguyen E 23' W 46' Lot 6, Block 59, Original Town 189.22 

Larry C. & Mary Ann Gerdes W 23' Lot 6, Block 59, Original Town 188.24 

Doax Investment Co. E 20' Lot 6; W1/2 Lot 7, Block 59, Original Town 18.67 

H & H Land Company W 22' E1/2 Lot 7, Block 59, Original Town 185.94 

H & H Land Company E 11' Lot 7; Lot 8, Block 59, Original Town 535.38 

CKP LLC Lots 1 & 2, Block 60, Original Town 517.32 

CKP LLC Lot 3, Block 60, Original Town 122.54 

Business Properties of Nebraska 
LLC 

Lot 4, Block 60, Original Town 226.77 

618 W 3rd Street LLC Lots 5 & 6, Block 60, Original Town 757.55 

Doax Investment Co. Lots 7 & 8, Block 60, Original Town 582.93 

Daniel H. Eakes and Ronald L. 
Eakes, Trustees 

Lots 1 & 2, Block 61, Original Town 814.25 



- 4 - 
  

Daniel H. Eakes and Ronald L. 
Eakes, Trustees 

Lots 3 & 4, Block 61, Original Town 745.31 

Tri-City Properties LLC Lot 5, Block 61, Original Town 725.01 

Jack L. Hansen Lots 6, 7 and 8, Block 61, Original Town 833.06 

Richard H. & Arlene M. Baasch S 44' Lot 1, Block 62, Original Town 200.54 

Cedar Street Properties LLC N 88' Lot 1, Block 62, Original Town 529.05 

Cedar Street Properties LLC Lot 2, Block 62, Original Town 300.23 

Alan D. Zwink N 66' W 9' Lot 3; N 66' Lot 4, Block 62, Original 
Town 

160.01 

Vogel Enterprises, Ltd. E 16' Lot 5; W1/2 Lot 6, Block 62, Original Town 65.07 

Vogel Enterprises, Ltd. E1/2 Lot 6; W1/2 Lot 7, Block 62, Original Town 389.50 

Old Sears Development, Inc. Lots 1 & 2, Block 63, Original Town 1,177.04 

Old Sears Development, Inc. E2/3 Lot 3, Block 63, Original Town 377.45 

Marlyn J. Miller W1/3 Lot 3; E1/3 Lot 4, Block 63, Original Town 273.41 

Monte C. & Sheri S. Hack S 88' Lot 8, Block 63, Original Town 413.13 

Maude E. Walters E1/3 Lot 1, Block 64, Original Town 292.97 

Craig C. Hand C1/3 Lot 1, Block 64, Original Town 156.49 

Cosrec Enterprises W1/3 Lot 1, Block 64, Original Town 200.80 

Glade Inc. E 44' Lot 2, Block 64, Original Town 280.81 

Ivan P. & Sharon L. Walsh W1/3 Lot 2, Block 64, Original Town 213.60 

Double S Properties LLC E1/3 Lot 3, Block 64, Original Town 195.17 

Donald D. & Marilyn J. Mehring W2/3 Lot 3, Block 64, Original Town 173.93 

Galen E. & Tamera M. Gerdes Lot 4, Block 64, Original Town 922.51 

Vicki L. Kissler N 22' Lot 8, Block 64, Original Town 187.34 

Terry N. & Susan M. Taylor S1/2 N1/3 Lot 8, Block 64, Original Town 163.67 

Laverne & Donna R. Shehein N 44' S 88' Lot 8, Block 64, Original Town 190.80 

Wayne E. & Ardith C. May Lot 1, Block 65, Original Town 225.02 

Gary L. & Barbara J. Pedersen, 
William D. & Mary C. Grange 

E1/3 Lot 2, Block 65, Original Town 172.39 

Constance K. Swanson C1/3 Lot 2, Block 65, Original Town 162.50 

Archway Partnership W1/3 Lot 2, Block 65, Original Town 255.22 

Bartenbach Real Estate, LLC E1/3 Lot 3, Block 65, Original Town 168.38 

Janelle L. Brown W1/3 Lot 3, Block 65, Original Town 147.59 

Allen & Linda Hoffer E1/3 Lot 4, Block 65, Original Town 297.69 



- 5 - 
  

Harriet K. Lambrecht W2/3 Lot 4, Block 65, Original Town 185.85 

J & B Rentals LLC S 44' N1/2 Lot 5, Block 65, Original Town 241.44 

Terry N. & Susan M. Taylor N 22' Lot 5, Block 65, Original Town 141.22 

JO Enterprises Inc. S1/2 Lot 5, Block 65, Original Town 300.44 

Steven L. & Barbara J. Fuller W1/3 Lot 6, Block 65, Original Town 92.05 

Scott B. & Sheri Arnold E2/3 Lot 6, Block 65, Original Town 176.25 

Transportation Equipment Co., 
Inc. 

W1/2 Lot 7, Block 65, Original Town 228.50 

C & S Group LLC N 55' of E1/2 Lot 7; N 55' Lot 8, Block 65, Original 
Town 

52.29 

C & S Group LLC W 18.9' of E1/2 Lot 7; N 29.9' of E 14.1' Lot 7; W 29' 
C 22' E1/2 Lot 7, N 29.9' of S 55' Lot 8 x CN6' S31.1' 
E40' Lot 8, Block 65, Original Town 

180.57 

David J. Parmley C 22' of E 4' Lot 7; C 22' of Lot 8, Block 65, Original 
Town 

290.40 

C & S Group LLC S 25.1' of Lot 8; N 6' of S 31.1' of E 40' Lot 8; and S 
25.1' of E14.1' of Lot 7, Block 65, Original Town 

233.10 

James J. Berglund Lots 1 & 2, Block 66, Original Town 1,265.34 

Bonnie G. Koepke S1/3 W1/3 of Lot 3 (Except 17.5'), C1/3 of Lot 3, 
Block 66, Original Town 

264.38 

John Vipperman, Arthur Wetzel E1/3 Lot 3, Block 66, Original Town 240.63 

James G. Duda N88' E1/3 Lot 4, Block 66, Original Town 247.41 

J. Gary & Patricia M. Vejvoda N 88' C1/3 Lot 4, Block 66, Original Town 307.10 

Ben’s Drug Store, Inc. N80' W1/3 Lot 4, Block 66, Original Town 123.72 

The Retzler Development Group, 
LLC 

Pt W 17.5' S 44' Lot 3; N 8' S 52' W 22', & S 44', Lot 
4, Block 66, Original Town 

229.19 

Bartenbach Real Estate, LLC Lot 5, W1/3 Lot 6, Block 66, Original Town 546.10 

Bartenbach Real Estate, LLC E2/3 Lot 6; W1/3 Lot 7, Block 66, Original Town 284.11 

James E. & Mary Ann Keeshan E2/3 Lot 7, Block 66, Original Town 289.04 

Procon Management Inc. Lot 8, Block 66, Original Town 3,271.84 

Plaza Square Development LLC S1/2 Block 67, Original Town 1,437.58 

Steven P. & Vicki Rasmussen W2/3 Lot 2, Block 68, Original Town 351.51 

Grand Island Venue, LLC Part of Lots 3 and 4, Block 68, Original Town 1,545.47 

Plaza Square Development Lot 5; W 22' Lot 6, Block 68, Original Town 133.15 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn Lot 1, Block 79, Original Town 370.10 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn Lot 2, Block 79, Original Town 110.49 



- 6 - 
  

Equitable Building & Loan Assn S 44' Lot 3, S 44' Lot 4, Block 79, Original Town 741.56 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn N 26' 10.5" Lot 8, Block 79, Original Town 28.36 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn S 17' 1.5" N 44' Lot 8, Block 79, Original Town 16.26 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn S 88' Lot 8, Block 79, Original Town 96.46 

Thomas, Timothy, & Josephine 
O’Neill 

E 22' of Lot 4, W 22' of Lot 3, Block 80, Original 
Town 

193.21 

Thomas W. O’Neill, Joseph P. & 
Timothy R. O’Neill 

W 44' of Lot 4, Block 80, Original Town 139.64 

David C. Huston C1/3 Lot 8, Block 80, Original Town 277.03 

Derek L. & Ruth E. Mitchell S 44' Lot 8, Block 80, Original Town 260.39 

Ronald E. & Sharon R. Trampe W1/3 Lot 2, Block 81, Original Town 165.97 

Kansas Nebraska Associate of 
Seventh Day Adventists 

E1/3 Lot 3, Block 81, Original Town 174.57 

James S. & Precious A. Reed C1/3 Lot 3, Block 81, Original Town 260.90 

Ronald C. & Vada M. Krauss W1/3 Lot 3, Lot 4, Block 81, Original Town 495.57 

Walnut Street Partnership Lot 5, Block 81, Original Town 465.66 

Walnut Street Partnership Lot 6, Block 81, Original Town 189.19 

Wheeler Street Partnership Lot 7; S2/3 Lot 8, Block 81, Original Town 914.73 

Kent A. Schroeder and Donald L. 
Rathman, Trustees 

N1/3 Lot 8, Block 81, Original Town 264.41 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lot 1, Block 82, Original Town 84.82 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lot 2, Block 82, Original Town 283.25 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lot 3, Block 82, Original Town 84.82 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lot 4, Block 82, Original Town 290.07 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lots 5, 6, 7 and 8, Block 82, Original Town 2,901.17 

Grand Island Hospitality LLC Lots 1 and 2, Block 83, Original Town 414.27 

JOMIDA, Inc. Lots 3 and 4, Block 83, Original Town 983.54 

Michael & Sonya Wooden E 41' N 28' Lot 8, Block 83, Original Town 142.08 

Michael & Sonya Wooden Pt N1/3 and S2/3 Lot 8, Block 83, Original Town 206.42 

Contryman & Associates Lots 3 and 4, Block 85, Original Town 505.07 

G.I. Liederkranz Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4, Block 87, Original Town 311.72 

Enviro-Clean Contractors Inc. N 60' of Fr Lots 1, 2, 3, Block 89, Original Town 371.22 

Kathleen A. Campbell W 67' S 50' Lot 4, Hann Addition 134.82 

Hoos Insurance Agency Inc. Lot 4, Pt of Vac St, Block 97, Railroad Addition (Comp 
County Sub 15-11-9) 

291.19 



- 7 - 
  

Filemon Sanchez N1/2 Lot 1, Block 98, Railroad Addition 23.68 

Arvid C. Carlson Lot 2, Block 98, Railroad Addition 122.33 

Floriberto Sanchez Benitez W 52' Lot 7, Block 98, Railroad Addition 223.12 

Filemon Sanchez E 14' Lot 7, Lot 8, Block 98, Railroad Addition 351.60 

Contryman & Associates Lots 1 and 2, Block 106, Railroad Addition 394.05 

The Muffler Shop, Inc. Lots 1 and 2, Block 107, Railroad Addition 387.35 

The Muffler Shop, Inc. Lots 3 & 4, Block 107, Railroad Addition 192.61 

Joseph M. & Lori Jean Brown S2/3 Lot 5, Block 107, Railroad Addition 358.39 

David E. Janda, DDS S 72' Lot 8, E 29.54' of S 71.5' Lot 7, Block 107, 
Railroad Addition 

332.96 

Barbara J. Clinch N 60' of E 22' of Lot 7, N 60' Lot 8, Block 107, 
Railroad Addition 

280.20 

Richard & Marilyn Fox Lots 1 and 2, Block 108, Railroad Addition 501.31 

Douglas Bookkeeping Service Inc. W 29' Lot 3, Lot 4, Block 108, Railroad Addition 609.91 

Donald J. & Janet L. Placke S 88' Lot 5, Block 108, Railroad Addition 140.59 

Sam Huston Rev Living Trust Lot 6, Block 108, Railroad Addition 195.22 

Bosselman, Inc. Lots 7 and 8, Block 108, Railroad Addition 608.98 

David A. & Carolyn J. Gilroy S 61' Lot 1; S 61' Lot 2, Block 109, Railroad Addition 214.32 

Gregory T. & Gay L. Austin N 71' Lot 1; N 71' Lot 2, Block 109, Railroad Addition 135.02 

J&B Rentals, LLC E 59.5' Lot 3, Block 109, Railroad Addition 147.97 

J&B Rentals, LLC W 6' 6.5" Lot 3, E 52'11" Lot 4, Block 109, Railroad 
Addition 

73.74 

Roger L & Sharon K. McShannon Lots 5 and 6, Block 109, Railroad Addition 227.57 

LPB, LLC Lots 7 & 8, Block 109, Railroad Addition 469.13 

Bonna Barton Wanek Lot 8, Block 114, Railroad Addition 771.74 

Margo Schager Lot A, Gilbert’s North Subdivision in part of Block 79, 
Original Town 

165.86 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn Lot B, Gilberts North Subdivision in part of Block 79, 
Original Town 

173.21 

Equitable Building & Loan Assoc 
of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 102 155.38 

Equitable Building & Loan Assoc 
of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 103 226.71 

Equitable Building & Loan Assoc 
of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 104 557.15 

Equitable Building & Loan  Assoc Yancey Condominium 201A 492.38 



- 8 - 
  

of Grand Island 

Devco Investment Corporation Yancey Condominium 301 106.82 

Arvon & Luella Marcotte Yancey Condominium 302 77.57 

Thomas & Nita Farr Yancey Condominium 303 110.33 

William L. Zins Yancey Condominium 304 101.66 

Dudley & Diana Baxter Yancey Condominium 401 78.84 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 402 89.94 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 403 86.36 

Michael D. Jones Yancey Condominium 404 142.81 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 405 86.78 

Larry D. Ruth Yancey Condominium 406 122.41 

Wyndell & Barbara Fordham Yancey Condominium 407 134.40 

Archway Partnership Yancey Condominium 501 113.89 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 502 92.44 

Dudley & Diana Baxter Yancey Condominium 503 86.42 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 505 86.84 

Robert A. Cieloha Yancey Condominium 506 122.50 

Kelvin Paul & Bonnie Diane Davis Yancey Condominium 507 138.51 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 601 79.61 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 602 92.60 

Colleen A. O'Neill                        
Donald Matthews 

Yancey Condominium 603 124.07 

Daniel F. Clyne Yancey Condominium 604 99.96 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 605 86.94 

Ryan G. Hansen Yancey Condominium 606 85.99 

Charmaine L. Arp Yancey Condominium 607 129.92 

Laura J. Johnson Yancey Condominium 701 87.05 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 702 92.72 

Richard & Margaret Johnson Yancey Condominium 703 86.67 

Art & Jan Burtscher Yancey Condominium 704 143.12 

Michelle R. Rathjen Yancey Condominium 705 95.62 

Clifton J. Long, Sandra A. Thinnes Yancey Condominium 706 85.74 

Nelse Zachry Yancey Condominium 707 156.63 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 801 79.77 



- 9 - 
  

Mapes & Co. Partnership Yancey Condominium 802 92.81 

Mapes & Co. Partnership Yancey Condominium 803 101.48 

Judy J. Arnett Yancey Condominium 804 163.99 

Wendy Alexander              
Christine Alexander-Johnson 

Yancey Condominium 805 122.31 

Jack Nelson Yancey Condominium 806 93.30 

James F. Nissan Rev Trust Yancey Condominium 901 79.80 

Elaine & Everett Evnen Yancey Condominium 902 92.88 

Elaine & Everett Evnen Yancey Condominium 903 101.54 

Ann C. Atkins Yancey Condominium 904 149.69 

Kerry A. Rodocker Yancey Condominium 905 99.56 

Donald Jurewicz Yancey Condominium 906 152.37 

Linda Todd Yancey Condominium 1001 87.24 

David H. Wren Yancey Condominium 1002 92.91 

Jeremy S. & Jack L. Gillam Yancey Condominium 1003 101.60 

Ruth E. Megard, Trustee Yancey Condominium 1005 108.59 

Tera VanWinkle Yancey Condominium 1006 155.68 

John Patrick Tooley Yancey Condominium 1101 87.36 

Linda L. Clare Rev Trust Yancey Condominium 1102 93.00 

Lynn A. Buckley Yancey Condominium 1103 111.14 

Frank L. Hoelck Trust Yancey Condominium 1104 155.99 

Elizabeth W. Mayer Yancey Condominium 1105 108.74 

Elizabeth W. Mayer Yancey Condominium 1106 186.31 

Home Federal Savings & Loan 
Assn 

Lot 3, Hann's 4th Addition 1,913.59 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 002 10.42 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 001 26.70 

Bonna Barton Wanek S 88' Lot 7, Block 114, Railroad Addition 50.24 

Roxann Ellison W 18.9' of E 33' of S 25.1' Lot 7, Block 65, Original 
Town 

56.89 

Equitable Building & Loan Assoc 
of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 101 37.57 

Equitable Building & Loan Assoc 
of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 201B 59.50 

Equitable Building & Loan Assoc Yancey Condominium 201C 149.79 



- 10 - 
  

of Grand Island 

Equitable Building & Loan Assoc 
of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 201D 114.25 

Home Federal Savings & Loan 
Assoc. of Grand Island 

Pt Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 7; all of Lots 5 and 6; pt Vacated 
Alley, Block 89, Original Town 

389.81 

James & Mavis Reiter Lot 2, Jensen Subdivision 97.40 

Furniture Clearing House, Inc. Lot 2, Ziller Subdivision 425.74 

Salvation Army Block 113 and part of vacated alley, Railroad Addition 180.82 

City of Grand Island S1/2 of Lot 1, Block 58, Original Town 31.66 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska on September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Margaret Hornady, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item E1
Public Hearing on Request from Melodee Anderson for a 
Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary Modular Office Located 
at 3515 West Old Potash Highway
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Craig Lewis

City of Grand Island City Council



 

 

Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Craig Lewis, Building Department Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Request of Melodee Anderson for Approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit to Place a Temporary Modular 
Office at 3515 West Old Potash Highway 

 
Item #’s:  E-1 & H-1 
 
Presenter(s): Craig Lewis, Building Department Director 
 
 

Background 
 

This request is for the approval of a Conditional Use permit to allow for the placement of 
a temporary modular office building to facilitate operation of a sales office during 
renovations of the existing building currently on the site. The zoning classification for 
this property is M-2, Heavy Manufacturing Zone. That classification does not allow for a 
temporary building unless approved by the City Council in the form of a conditional use 
permit. 
 
The application requests approval for a one year period. 
 

Discussion 
 

This is a fairly large property and appears to have adequate room for the temporary 
placement of a modular office during renovations of the existing building. The 
application does not identify a location for the proposed temporary building and staff 
would recommend any approvals be subject to the location being approved by the City 
Fire and Building Departments to accommodate any setbacks, fire separations, and fire 
lanes. The request is for a one year period which appears appropriate but the approval 
should terminate at the end of the one year or within 30 days of the completion of the 
proposed renovation of the existing building. The application does not appear to have any 
negative impact on the site or the surrounding properties. 
 



 

 

Alternatives 
 

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 

1. Approve the request for the Conditional Use Permit. 
2. Disapprove or /Deny the Request. 
3. Modify the Conditional Use Permit to meet the wishes of the Council. 
4. Table the issue. 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the conditional use permit to 
allow for the placement of a temporary modular office facility, with the following 
stipulation; 1) The conditional use permit shall expire within a one year period or within 
30 days of the completion of the renovation of the existing building on the site, which 
ever occurs first. 2)The exact location shall be approved by the City Fire and Building 
Departments prior to placement. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the request for a conditional use permit with the stipulations as 
identified in the departmental memorandum. 





Item E2
Public Hearing on Request from Randy & Cynthia Evans for a 
Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary Car Dealership Office 
Located at 1407 West 2nd Street
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Craig Lewis

City of Grand Island City Council



 

 

Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Craig Lewis, Building Department Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Request of Randy & Cynthia Evens for Approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit to Place a Temporary Office at 
1407 West 2nd Street 

 
Item #’s:  E-2 & H-2 
 
Presenter(s): Craig Lewis, Building Department Director 
 
 

Background 
 

This request is for the approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for the placement of 
a temporary office building to facilitate operations of the existing car dealership during 
removal of existing buildings and the construction of a new building and facilities. The 
property is currently zoned B-2, General Business and that classification does not allow 
the placement of a temporary building without the approval of the City Council in the 
form of a conditional use permit. 
 
The request is for a 10 month period. 
 

Discussion 
 

The proposal is to renovate the entire half block to facilitate the existing car dealership 
currently in operation. The location of the proposed temporary building does not appear 
to create any negative impacts on the property or surrounding neighborhoods. The 
request is for a 10 month period and appears reasonable; approval should terminate at the 
end of a one year period or within 30 days of the completion of the construction of a new 
dealership facility, which ever occurs first. A one year period allows time past that which 
is requested in the application but in line with past approvals.  
 

Alternatives 
 

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 

1. Approve the request for the Conditional Use. 



 

 

2. Disapprove or /Deny the Request. 
3. Modify the Conditional Use Permit to meet the wishes of the Council. 
4. Table the issue. 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the conditional use permit to 
allow for the placement of a temporary office building with the following condition; the 
conditional use permit will expire within one year or within 30 days of the completion of 
a permanent facility, which ever occurs first. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the request for a conditional use permit with the conditions as 
identified in the departmental memorandum. 







Item E3
Public Hearing on Request from Olsson & Associates for a 
Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary Soil Vapor Extraction 
Trailer Located at 373 North Vine Street
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Craig Lewis

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Craig A. Lewis, Building Department Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Request of Olsson and Associates for Approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit to Allow for the Placement of a 
Temporary Trailer to Accommodate a Soil Vapor 
Extraction Operation at 373 N. Vine Street 

 
Item #’s:  E-3 & H-3 
 
Presenter(s): Craig Lewis, Building Department Director 
 
 

Background 
 

This request is for approval of a conditional use permit to allow for the temporary 
placement of a vapor extraction trailer to facilitate the removal of free phase petroleum 
from groundwater at the site. The site is currently zoned (M-3) Mixed Use 
Manufacturing. Trailers and temporary buildings are only allowed within this zoning 
classification if approved by the City Council in the form of a conditional use permit.  
 

Discussion 
 

This proposal is similar to several in the recent past to allow for a trailer or a temporary 
building to be placed on the site to aid in the clean up of groundwater. The proposed 
length of time is for five years however City Code limits two years between approvals. 
The site location is such that it would not appear that this request will have any negative 
impact on neighboring properties.  
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the request. 
2. Disapprove or /Deny the request. 
3. Modify the request  to meet the wishes of the Council 
4. Table the issue 



 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the request and authorize the 
issuance of a conditional use permit for a two year period.   
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the request for a conditional use permit to allow for a temporary vapor 
extraction facility for a two year period. 



















Item E4
Public Hearing on General Property, Parking District #2 (Ramp) 
and Community Redevelopment Authority Tax Request
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Public Hearing and Resolution Approving General 

Property, Parking District No. 2 (Ramp), and Community 
Redevelopment Authority Tax Request 

 
Item #’s:  E-4 & I-1 
 
Presenter(s): Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
 

Background  
 
Nebraska State Statute 77-1601-02 requires that the City of Grand Island conduct a 
public hearing if the property tax request changes from one year to the next. Our general 
property tax request increased from $5,212,064 for FY2006-2007 to $5,280,591 for 
FY2007-2008, or an increase of $67,527. This represents a 1.3% increase in actual tax 
dollars, a 0.0% change in the City’s levy. 
  
The property tax request for Parking District No.2, also known as the Parking Ramp 
(Fund 271), decreased from $11,000 in FY2006-2007 to $9,000 for FY2007-2008, or a 
decrease of $2,000. Parking District No. 2’s levy decreased by 18.2%, while the districts 
valuation increased by 20.7%. This is the sixth consecutive year that the tax asking has 
been reduced for the Parking Ramp. 
 
The property tax request for the Community Redevelopment Authority increased from 
$492,540 requested in FY2006-2007 to $500,000 for FY2007-2008. This represents a 
1.5% increase in tax dollars and a 0.2% increase in the CRA’s levy. 
 

Discussion 
 
The City Council needs to pass a resolution by majority vote setting the property tax 
request for the general property tax at $5,280,591, the Parking District No.2 property tax 
at $9,000, and the Community Redevelopment Authority property tax at $500,000. The 
property tax request was published in the Grand Island Independent on September 7, 
2007. It is appropriate at this time to solicit public comment. The action is contained 
under Resolutions. This represents the final action to be taken on the FY2007-2008 
Budget. 



 
Alternatives 

 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the General Property, Parking District No. 2, and CRA tax requests.    
      2.         Modify the Budget and tax requests.   
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the tax requests and levies as 
presented.   
 

Sample Motion 
 
Approve the FY2007-2008 General Property, Parking District No.2, and Community 
Redevelopment Authority tax requests and levies, as presented in the related Resolution. 



Item F1
#9136 - Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement 
District #3
This item relates to the aforementioned Board of Equalization Item D-1.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 6, 2007 ¤   City Attorney  

ORDINANCE NO. 9136 
 

 
 An ordinance to assess and levy a special tax to pay the 2007-2008 revenue year 

cost of Business Improvement District No. 3 of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska; to provide 

for the collection of such special tax; to repeal any provisions of the Grand Island City Code, 

ordinances, or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith; and to provide for publication and the 

effective date of this ordinance. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1. There is hereby assessed upon the following described lots, tracts, 

and parcels of land, specially benefited, fo r the purpose of paying the 2007-2008 revenue year 

cost of Business Improvement District No. 3 of the City of Grand Island, as adjudged by the 

Council of the City, sitting as a Board of Equalization, to the extent of benefits accruing thereto 

by reason of such Business Improvement District, after due notice having been given thereof as 

provided by law; and a special tax for such 2007-2008 revenue year cost is hereby levied at one 

time upon such lots, tracts and lands as follows: 

 
Name Description Assessment 

Jerry L. & Janet C. Loney West 273 feet of Lot 1 (except City), Burch Subdivision 603.83 

Larry W. Coffey West 125 feet of Lots 2, 3 and 4 (except City), Burch 
Subdivision 

775.89 

Michael S. & Sandra S. Williams  Lot 5 (except City), Burch Subdivision 515.99 

Michael S. & Sandra S. Williams  Lot 1 (except City), Burch Second Subdivision 605.56 

The Eating Establishment Lot 1 (except City), Runza Subdivision 667.45 

Bradley L. Shanahan 
Teresa K. Brooks 

East 100 feet of Lot 12, and east 100 feet of Lot 13, 
(except City) Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

862.00 

Charles L. Hancock & Robert D. 
Hancock 

Lot 14 (except City), Holcomb's Highway Homes 
Subdivision 

472.20 

Ryan & Darcy Hansen Lot 15 (except City), Holcomb's Highway Homes 
Subdivision 

467.38 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9136 (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

Dianna D. Duering Lot 1, Bartz Subdivision 469.79 

Gary & Linda Shovlain Lot 3, Shovlain Second Subdivision 669.64 

Rickie D. & Susan J. Noden South 52 feet of Lot 19 and north 1 foot of Lot 20, 
Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

225.54 

Video Kingdom of Grand Island, Inc. South 108 feet of Lot 20 (except City), Holcomb's 
Highway Homes Subdivision 

469.88 

Kershner Properties, LLC North 60 feet of Lot 22 (except City), Holcomb's 
Highway Homes Subdivision 

225.32 

Charles A. Douthit  Lot 21 (except City), Holcomb's Highway Homes 
Subdivision 

469.88 

Da-ly Properties, LLC South 98 feet of Lot 23 and north 12 feet of Lot 24, 
(except City) Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

474.10 

Kershner Properties, LLC South 49 feet of Lot 22 and north 11 feet of Lot 23 
(except City), Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

258.60 

Llamas Enterprises 
Alina Hernandez 

South 97 feet of Lot 24, Lot 25, and north 38 feet of Lot 
26, (except City) Holcomb's Highway Homes 
Subdivision 

1,051.38 

Marion D. Larsen Rev. Trust North 79 feet of Lot 27 and south 71 feet of Lot 26, 
(except City) Holcomb's Highway Homes Subdivision 

646.76 

McCloud Super 8 Motel Inc. Part of Lot 25 (e xcept City), Matthews Subdivision 1,066.64 

William E. & Sandra L. Lawrey Lot 1 (except City), Garrison Subdivision 974.62 

Cedar Street Investment Co. Lot 2, Mil-Nic Second Subdivision 1,179.22 

Paulsen and Sons Inc. Lots 1 & 28 (except City), Lots 2, 3, 26, and 27, Roush's 
Pleasantville Terrace Subdivision 

862.26 

Gary E. Shovlain Lot 2, Shovlain Second Subdivision 517.29 

Rex E. & Jonadyne A. Carpenter Lot 1 [200' x 400'] (except City), Woodland First 
Subdivision 

859.50 

Rex E. & Jonadyne A. Carpenter Lot 2 [200' x 400'] (except City), Woodland First 
Subdivision 

862.17 

Equitable Federal Savings Bank of 
Grand Island 

Lot 3 (except City), Woodland First Subdivision 862.26 

Danny K. Oberg Lot 4 (except City), Woodland First Subdivision 857.86 

Darryl Wilhelmi Lot 5 (except City), Woodland First Subdivision 862.26 

Richard S. Rasmussen, Jr., et al North 50 feet of east 260 feet of Lot 6 (except City), 
Woodland First Subdivision 

214.85 

Pam Ehlers South 126 feet of east 260 feet of Lot 6 (except City), 
Woodland First Subdivision 

545.78 

Alpha Corporation East 260 feet of Lot 8 (except City), Woodland First 
Subdivision 

902.73 

Stratford Plaza, L.L.C. Lot 11 (except City), Woodland Second Subdivision 2,340.85 

Bosselman Inc. Lot 8, Woodland Second Subdivision 643.66 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9136 (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

Bennett Properties Inc. Lot 9, Woodland Second Subdivision 646.63 

Laub-Otto, LLC Lot 10, Woodland Second Subdivision 684.82 

Jack E. Rasmussen, Joanne L. 
Rasmussen, Richard S. Rasmussen, June 
E. & William Blackburn 

Lot 1 except north 25 feet of east 260 feet (except City), 
Woodland Third Subdivision 

322.91 

Dale & Kathleen Arp North 25 feet of east 260 feet of Lot 1 and all of Lot 2, 
(except City) Woodland Third Subdivision 

538.45 

McDermott & Miller, PC Lot 1 (except City), Woodridge South Subdivision 1,088.36 

Marion D. Larsen Rev. Trust Lot 2 (except City), Woodridge South Subdivision 468.41 

Ming Zhou, Nghi Trien Section 27-11-9; Part of Lot 1 MLD (except City) 427.60 

Milton Motels LLC Part of N1/2, SW1/4, SW1/4 of Section 27-11-9 2,172.28 

Platte Valley State Bank & Trust 
Company 

Lot 1, Equestrian Meadows Subdivision 768.13 

Chlonate LLC Part of Lot 1 (except City), Desert Rose Subdivision 1,843.09 

Theodore J. Robb Part of NW1/4, SW1/4 (except City) of Section 27-11-9 1,448.20 

MIK, LLC Part of NW1/4 of SW1/4 of Section 27-11-9 and part of 
Lot 4 Island (except City) 

1,331.70 

Community Redevelopment Authority Part of Lot 1 MLD in Section 27-11-9 629.95 

John L. & Beth A. French Lot 1 (except City), Knox Subdivision 602.67 

All Faiths Funeral Home LLC Part of NW1/4, NW1/4, SW1/4 of Section 27-11-9 1,034.40 

Pharmacy Properties, LLC Lot 2, Equestrian Meadows Subdivision 624.91 

Ronald J. & Lori D. Willis  Part of NE1/4 of NE1/4 (except City) of Section 28-11-9 431.00 

Theodore J. & Mason D. Robb Lot 2 (except City), Knox Third Subdivision 569.09 

Ted Robb Lot 3 (except City), Knox Third Subdivision 332.13 

O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Lot 2 (except City), Runza Subdivision 670.81 

Theodore J. & Mason D. Robb Lot 1 (except City), Knox Third Subdivision 664.39 

MA Faulkner Trust Lot 3, Equestrian Meadows Subdivision 793.82 

Wayne Vanosdall Sanitation Part of N1/2, SW1/4, SW1/4 of Section 27-11-9 653.40 

TOTAL  $42,260.29 

 
 SECTION 2.  The special tax shall become delinquent in fifty (50) days from date 

of this levy; the entire amount so assessed and levied against each lot or tract may be paid within 

fifty (50) days from the date of this levy without interest and the lien of special tax thereby 

satisfied and released. After the same shall become delinquent, interest at the rate of fourteen 

percent (14%) per annum shall be paid thereon. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9136 (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

 SECTION 3.  The city treasurer of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, is hereby 

directed to collect the amount of said taxes herein set forth as provided by law. 

 SECTION 4.  Such special assessments shall be paid into a fund to be designated 

as the "Business Improvement District No. 3".  

 SECTION 5.  Any provision of the Grand Island City Code, any ordinance, or 

part of an ordinance in conflict herewith is hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 6.  This ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its 

passage and publication, in pamphlet form, within fifteen days in one issue of the Grand Island 

Independent as provided by law. 

 Enacted:  September 11, 2007. 

 
   ____________________________________ 
   Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



Item F2
#9137 - Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement 
District #4
This item relates to the aforementioned Board of Equalization Item D-2.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 6, 2007 ¤   City Attorney  

ORDINANCE NO. 9137 
 

 
 An ordinance to assess and levy a special tax to pay the 2007-2008 revenue year 

cost of Business Improvement District No. 4 of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska; to provide 

for the collection of such special tax; to repeal any provisions of the Grand Island City Code, 

ordinances, or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith; and to provide for publication and the 

effective date of this ordinance. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1. There is hereby assessed upon the following described lots, tracts, 

and parcels of land, specially benefited, for the purpose of paying the 2007-2008 revenue year 

cost of Business Improvement District No. 4 of the City of Grand Island, as adjudged by the 

Council of the City, sitting as a Board of Equalization, to the extent of benefits accruing thereto 

by reason of such Business Improvement District, after due notice having been given thereof as 

provided by law; and a special tax for such 2007-2008 revenue year cost is hereby levied at one 

time upon such lots, tracts and lands as follows: 

 
Name Description Assessment 

Michael J. & Mandy Westerby Part of Lot 1, Janisch Subdivision 537.42 

Niels McDermott Lot 1 (except E 10 feet), Brownell Subdivision 223.91 

Wiltgen Corp. II Lot 5, Kirkpatrick Subdivision 316.06 

Wiltgen Corp. II Lot 6, Kirkpatrick Subdivision 311.32 

E.P.S. Investments Part of Lot 1 (except City), Labelindo Second 
Subdivision 

1,252.52 

James Scott Zana Part of Lot 1, R & R Subdivision 630.43 

Fontenelle Oil Co. #210 E1/2, S1/2 of Block 9 (except City), Pleasant Home 
Subdivision 

628.90 

Locust Street LLC Block 16 (except City), Pleasant Home Subdivision 1,252.38 

M & W Investment Co. Part of Lots 1 and 2, Roepke Subdivision 691.44 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9137  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

M & W Investment Co. Part of Lot 1, Roepke Second Subdivision 203.84 

Edwards Building Corp. Lot 1 (except City), Fonner Subdivision 671.73 

Grand Island Associates, LLC Lot 1, Fonner Fourth Subdivision 2,194.98 

5500 L Street Properties Co. Lot 5 (except City), Fonner Second Subdivision 895.37 

5500 L Street Properties Co. Lot 6 (except City), Fonner Second Subdivision 1,792.67 

Three Circle Irrigation Inc. Part of Lot 1 and Part of Lot 3, Fonner Third 
Subdivision 

1,522.44 

Edwards Building Corp. 

Kenneth W. & Rosemary Staab 

Replatted part of Lot 3, Fonner Third Subdivision 

Part of the SE1/4, SE1/4, Miscellaneous Tracts, 21-11-9 
(except City) 

627.20 

232.87 

GIPH Restaurants LLC Part of SE1/4, SE1/4 of Section 21-11-9 (except City) 605.20 

Michael J. & Carey M. Reilly Lot 1, JNW Subdivision 689.92 

Edwards Building Corp. Lot 1, JNW Second Subdivision 742.92 

Sax Pizza of America, Inc. Lot 2 (except City), Sax's Subdivision 484.29 

Cindy Braddy Part of SE1/4, SE1/4 of Section 21-11-9 (except City) 605.96 

Arec 7, LLC Part of SE1/4, SE1/4 of Section 21-11-9 (except City) 895.91 

Sax Pizza of America, Inc. Lot 3 (except City), Sax's Subdivision 558.61 

O. Michael & Laurel Z. Toukan Lot 3, Goodwill Fifth Subdivision 531.06 

O. Michael & Laurel Z. Toukan Lot 2, Goodwill Fifth Subdivision 294.34 

Hall County Livestock Improvement 
Association 

Part of SW1/4, SW1/4 and Part NW1/4, SW1/4  (except 
city) in Section 22-11-9 

1,484.85 

Byco Inc. Part of Lot 2, R & R Subdivision 624.29 

Preferred Enterprises LLC Part of Lot 2 (except City), Fonner Fourth Subdivision 672.04 

TOTAL  $22,174.87 

 
 SECTION 2.  The special tax shall become delinquent in fifty (50) days from date 

of this levy; the entire amount so assessed and levied against each lot or tract may be paid within 

fifty (50) days from the date of this levy without interest and the lien of special tax thereby 

satisfied and released. After the same shall become delinquent, interest at the rate of fourteen 

percent (14%) per annum shall be paid thereon. 

 SECTION 3.  The city treasurer of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, is hereby 

directed to collect the amount of said taxes herein set forth as provided by law. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9137  (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

 SECTION 4.  Such special assessments shall be paid into a fund to be designated 

as the "Business Improvement District No. 4".  

 SECTION 5.  Any provision of the Grand Island City Code, any ordinance, or 

part of an ordinance in conflict herewith is hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 6.  This ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its 

passage and publication, in pamphlet form, within fifteen days in one issue of the Grand Island 

Independent as provided by law. 

 Enacted:  September 11, 2007. 

 
   ____________________________________ 
   Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



Item F3
#9138 - Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement 
District #5
This item relates to the aforementioned Board of Equalization Item D-3.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 6, 2007 ¤   City Attorney  

ORDINANCE NO. 9138 
 

 
 An ordinance to assess and levy a special tax to pay the 2007-2008 revenue year 

cost of Business Improvement District No. 5 of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska; to provide 

for the collection of such special tax; to repeal any provisions of the Grand Island City Code, 

ordinances, or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith; and to provide for publication and the 

effective date of this ordinance. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1. There is hereby assessed upon the following described lots, tracts, 

and parcels of land, specially benefited, for the purpose of paying the 2007-2008 revenue year 

cost of Business Improvement District No. 5 of the City of Grand Island, as adjudged by the 

Council of the City, sitting as a Board of Equalization, to the extent of benefits accruing thereto 

by reason of such Business Improvement District, after due notice having been given thereof as 

provided by law; and a special tax for such 2007-2008 revenue year cost is hereby levied at one 

time upon such lots, tracts and lands as follows: 

Name Description Assessment 

Kinder Morgan Interstate Gas 
Transmission 

Centrally Assessed 23.22 

Northwestern Energy Centrally Assessed 506.62 

Alltel Nebraska, Inc. Centrally Assessed 4.51 

Qwest Corporation Centrally Assessed 3,872.61 

AT&T Communications Centrally Assessed 61.11 

MCI Worldcom Network 
Services Inc. 

Centrally Assessed 8.95 

NPCR, Inc. d/b/a Nextel Partners Centrally Assessed 38.44 

IPCS Wireless, LLC Centrally Assessed Exempt 

George Jay Jorgensen Beckby N 100.5' E2/3 Lot 1, Block 54, Original Town 304.19 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

George Jay Jorgensen Beckby S 31.9' E2/3 Lot 1, Block 54, Original Town  73.06 

Wing Properties Inc. W1/3 Lot 1, Block 54, Original Town 24.21 

R. Dennis & Patricia A. Norris, 
Trustees 

Lot 2, Block 54, Original Town 589.21 

John W. & Teresa A. Wayne N1/2 of W2/3 Lot 6, N1/2 Lot 5, Block 54, Original 
Town 

484.92 

Gus Katrouzos S 60' W1/3 Lot 5, Block 54, Original Town 88.98 

Gus Katrouzos S 60' W 16' E2/3 Lot 5, Block 54, Original Town 72.59 

Nickie J. Kallos E 28' S1/2 Lot 5; N 6' W 38' S1/2 Lot 5, Block 54, 
Original Town 

164.51 

Nickie J. Kallos W 22' S1/2 Lot 6; Block 54, Original Town 131.68 

R. Dennis & Patricia A. Norris, 
Trustees 

E 22' W 44' S1/2 Lot 6; E 22' Lot 6, Block 54, 
Original Town 

403.59 

R. Dennis & Patricia A. Norris, 
Trustees 

W1/3 Lot 7, Block 54, Original Town 324.17 

R. Dennis & Patricia A. Norris, 
Trustees 

C1/3 Lot 7, Block 54, Original Town 315.58 

Wing Properties Inc. E1/3 Lot 7, Lot 8 (except City), Block 54, Original 
Town 

1,109.81 

Nathan Detroit, Inc. N1/2 Lot 1, Block 55, Original Town 503.49 

Nathan Detroit, Inc. N 44' S1/2 Lot 1, Block 55, Original Town 336.24 

Virginia Irvine S 22' Lot 1, Block 55, Original Town 103.56 

Russell L. Hoetfelker S1/2 W1/2 Lot 3; S1/2 Lot 4, Block 55, Original 
Town 

388.40 

Downtown Center LLC N 67.5' Lot 5, Block 55, Original Town 52.62 

Matthew E. & Janelle A. 
Armstrong 

N 20' S 64.5' Lot 5, Block 55, Original Town 121.88 

Erivas Enterprises LLC S 44.5’ Lot 5, Block 55, Original Town 229.17 

Famos Construction, Inc. W2/3 Lot 6, Block 55, Original Town 197.35 

Arthur & Jeanene Campos E1/3 Lot 6, Block 55, Original Town 149.69 

Prairie Winds Art Center, Inc. W1/3 Lot 7, Block 55, Original Town 233.98 

Terrence R. Merchen E2/3 Lot 7, Block 55, Original Town 166.28 

Thomas W. & Angela J. Ziller W1/3 Lot 8, Block 55, Original Town 104.85 

Thomas W. & Angela J. Ziller C1/3 Lot 8, Block 55, Original Town 103.71 

Thomas W. Ziller E1/3 Lot 8, Block 55, Original Town 464.41 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

Downtown Center LLC N 68' Lot 1; Lot 2; E1/2 Lot 3, Block 56, Original 
Town 

176.81 

Downtown Center LLC N 22' of S 42', W 6' S 20', Lot 1, Block 56, Original 
Town 

15.86 

Downtown Center LLC N 22' of S 64' Lot 1, Block 56, Original Town 14.65 

Downtown Center LLC S 20' of E 60' Lot 1, Block 56, Original Town 12.10 

Carl & Susan A. Mayhew W1/3 Lot 5, Block 56, Original Town 268.48 

R & B Capital Enterprises LLC E2/3 Lot 5, Block 56, Original Town 466.32 

Helen E. & James A. Pohl W2/3 Lot 6, Block 56, Original Town 391.15 

Bette M. Tiner E1/3 Lot 6, Block 56, Original Town 171.10 

Duane A. & Dee Ann Johnson Lot 7, Block 56, Original Town 384.15 

Downtown Center LLC Lot 8, Block 56, Original Town 1,811.50 

J & B Rentals LLC Lot 1, Ziller Subdivision 516.63 

The Grand Island Foundation, 
Inc. 

E2/3 Lot 6, Block 57, Original Town Exempt 

JEO Building Company Lot 7, Block 57, Original Town 810.13 

Overland Building Corp. Lot 8, Block 57, Original Town 1,192.02 

FirsTier Bank National Assoc. Lots 1 & 2, Block 58, Original Town 341.57 

FirsTier Bank National Assoc. N1/2 Lot 3; N1/2 Lot 4, Block 58, Original Town 119.87 

FirsTier Bank National Assoc. Lot 5; W 22' Lot 6, Block 58, Original Town 1,638.59 

FirsTier Bank National Assoc. S1/2 Lot 3; S1/2 Lot 4, Block 58, Original Town 127.26 

Darrell & Joyce Albers Lot 1, Jensen Subdivision 159.08 

M SQ Designs, Inc. W1/3 Lot 7, Block 58, Original Town 246.00 

James K. Keeshan C1/3 Lot 7, Block 58, Original Town 148.74 

Jesus G. & Victoria Galvan Lot 1, Prensa Latina Subdivision 105.81 

Eliseo & Jessica Calderon Lot 2, Prensa Latina Subdivision 106.81 

Mark A. Stelk Lot 4, Prensa Latina Subdivision 331.14 

Margoth Carpio & Brenda 
Eugenia Panameno 

Lot 3, Prensa Latina Subdivision 182.30 

Mead Bldg. Centers of G.I. N 102.5' Lot 1; Lot 2, Block 59, Original Town 386.98 

H & H Land Co. S 29.5' Lot 1, Block 59, Original Town 19.64 

Mead Bldg. Centers of G.I. S 99' Lot 4; Lot 3, Block 59, Original Town 173.20 

Mead Bldg. Centers of G.I. N 33' Lot 4, Block 59, Original Town 177.36 

Daniel H. & Ronald L. Eakes, Lot 5, Block 59, Original Town 264.98 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

Trustees 

Chanh Ty Ngo & My T Nguyen E 23' W 46' Lot 6, Block 59, Original Town 189.22 

Larry C. & Mary Ann Gerdes W 23' Lot 6, Block 59, Original Town 188.24 

Doax Investment Co. E 20' Lot 6; W1/2 Lot 7, Block 59, Original Town 18.67 

H & H Land Company W 22' E1/2 Lot 7, Block 59, Original Town 185.94 

H & H Land Company E 11' Lot 7; Lot 8, Block 59, Original Town 535.38 

CKP LLC Lots 1 & 2, Block 60, Original Town 517.32 

CKP LLC Lot 3, Block 60, Original Town 122.54 

Business Properties of Nebraska 
LLC 

Lot 4, Block 60, Original Town 226.77 

618 W 3rd Street LLC Lots 5 & 6, Block 60, Original Town 757.55 

Doax Investment Co. Lots 7 & 8, Block 60, Original Town 582.93 

Daniel H. Eakes and Ronald L. 
Eakes, Trustees 

Lots 1 & 2, Block 61, Original Town 814.25 

Daniel H. Eakes and Ronald L. 
Eakes, Trustees 

Lots 3 & 4, Block 61, Original Town 745.31 

Tri-City Properties LLC Lot 5, Block 61, Original Town 725.01 

Jack L. Hansen Lots 6, 7 and 8, Block 61, Original Town 833.06 

Richard H. & Arlene M. Baasch S 44' Lot 1, Block 62, Original Town 200.54 

Cedar Street Properties LLC N 88' Lot 1, Block 62, Original Town 529.05 

Cedar Street Properties LLC Lot 2, Block 62, Original Town 300.23 

Alan D. Zwink N 66' W 9' Lot 3; N 66' Lot 4, Block 62, Original 
Town 

160.01 

Vogel Enterprises, Ltd. E 16' Lot 5; W1/2 Lot 6, Block 62, Original Town 65.07 

Vogel Enterprises, Ltd. E1/2 Lot 6; W1/2 Lot 7, Block 62, Original Town 389.50 

Old Sears Development, Inc. Lots 1 & 2, Block 63, Original Town 1,177.04 

Old Sears Development, Inc. E2/3 Lot 3, Block 63, Original Town 377.45 

Marlyn J. Miller W1/3 Lot 3; E1/3 Lot 4, Block 63, Original Town 273.41 

Monte C. & Sheri S. Hack S 88' Lot 8, Block 63, Original Town 413.13 

Maude E. Walters E1/3 Lot 1, Block 64, Original Town 292.97 

Craig C. Hand C1/3 Lot 1, Block 64, Original Town 156.49 

Cosrec Enterprises W1/3 Lot 1, Block 64, Original Town 200.80 

Glade Inc. E 44' Lot 2, Block 64, Original Town 280.81 

Ivan P. & Sharon L. Walsh W1/3 Lot 2, Block 64, Original Town 213.60 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

Double S Properties LLC E1/3 Lot 3, Block 64, Original Town 195.17 

Donald D. & Marilyn J. Mehring W2/3 Lot 3, Block 64, Original Town 173.93 

Galen E. & Tamera M. Gerdes Lot 4, Block 64, Original Town 922.51 

Vicki L. Kissler N 22' Lot 8, Block 64, Original Town 187.34 

Terry N. & Susan M. Taylor S1/2 N1/3 Lot 8, Block 64, Original Town 163.67 

Laverne & Donna R. Shehein N 44' S 88' Lot 8, Block 64, Original Town 190.80 

Wayne E. & Ardith C. May Lot 1, Block 65, Original Town 225.02 

Gary L. & Barbara J. Pedersen, 
William D. & Mary C. Grange 

E1/3 Lot 2, Block 65, Original Town 172.39 

Constance K. Swanson C1/3 Lot 2, Block 65, Original Town 162.50 

Archway Partnership W1/3 Lot 2, Block 65, Original Town 255.22 

Bartenbach Real Estate, LLC E1/3 Lot 3, Block 65, Original Town 168.38 

Janelle L. Brown W1/3 Lot 3, Block 65, Original Town 147.59 

Allen & Linda Hoffer E1/3 Lot 4, Block 65, Original Town 297.69 

Harriet K. Lambrecht W2/3 Lot 4, Block 65, Original Town 185.85 

J & B Rentals LLC S 44' N1/2 Lot 5, Block 65, Original Town 241.44 

Terry N. & Susan M. Taylor N 22' Lot 5, Block 65, Original Town 141.22 

JO Enterprises Inc. S1/2 Lot 5, Block 65, Original Town 300.44 

Steven L. & Barbara J. Fuller W1/3 Lot 6, Block 65, Original Town 92.05 

Scott B. & Sheri Arnold E2/3 Lot 6, Block 65, Original Town 176.25 

Transportation Equipment Co., 
Inc. 

W1/2 Lot 7, Block 65, Original Town 228.50 

C & S Group LLC N 55' of E1/2 Lot 7; N 55' Lot 8, Block 65, Original 
Town 

52.29 

C & S Group LLC W 18.9' of E1/2 Lot 7; N 29.9' of E 14.1' Lot 7; W 
29' C 22' E1/2 Lot 7, N 29.9' of S 55' Lot 8 x CN6' 
S31.1' E40' Lot 8, Block 65, Original Town 

180.57 

David J. Parmley C 22' of E 4' Lot 7; C 22' of Lot 8, Block 65, 
Original Town 

290.40 

C & S Group LLC S 25.1' of Lot 8; N 6' of S 31.1' of E 40' Lot 8; and S 
25.1' of E14.1' of Lot 7, Block 65, Original Town 

233.10 

James J. Berglund Lots 1 & 2, Block 66, Original Town 1,265.34 

Bonnie G. Koepke S1/3 W1/3 of Lot 3 (Except 17.5'), C1/3 of Lot 3, 
Block 66, Original Town 

264.38 

John Vipperman, Arthur Wetzel E1/3 Lot 3, Block 66, Original Town 240.63 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 6 - 
 

James G. Duda N88' E1/3 Lot 4, Block 66, Original Town 247.41 

J. Gary & Patricia M. Vejvoda N 88' C1/3 Lot 4, Block 66, Original Town 307.10 

Ben’s Drug Store, Inc. N80' W1/3 Lot 4, Block 66, Original Town 123.72 

The Retzler Development Group, 
LLC 

Pt W 17.5' S 44' Lot 3; N 8' S 52' W 22', & S 44', Lot 
4, Block 66, Original Town 

229.19 

Bartenbach Real Estate, LLC Lot 5, W1/3 Lot 6, Block 66, Original Town 546.10 

Bartenbach Real Estate, LLC E2/3 Lot 6; W1/3 Lot 7, Block 66, Original Town 284.11 

James E. & Mary Ann Keeshan E2/3 Lot 7, Block 66, Original Town 289.04 

Procon Management Inc. Lot 8, Block 66, Original Town 3,271.84 

Plaza Square Development LLC S1/2 Block 67, Original Town 1,437.58 

Steven P. & Vicki Rasmussen W2/3 Lot 2, Block 68, Original Town 351.51 

Grand Island Venue, LLC Part of Lots 3 and 4, Block 68, Original Town 1,545.47 

Plaza Square Development Lot 5; W 22' Lot 6, Block 68, Original Town 133.15 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn Lot 1, Block 79, Original Town 370.10 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn Lot 2, Block 79, Original Town 110.49 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn S 44' Lot 3, S 44' Lot 4, Block 79, Original Town 741.56 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn N 26' 10.5" Lot 8, Block 79, Original Town 28.36 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn S 17' 1.5" N 44' Lot 8, Block 79, Original Town 16.26 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn S 88' Lot 8, Block 79, Original Town 96.46 

Thomas, Timothy, & Josephine 
O’Neill 

E 22' of Lot 4, W 22' of Lot 3, Block 80, Original 
Town 

193.21 

Thomas W. O’Neill, Joseph P. & 
Timothy R. O’Neill 

W 44' of Lot 4, Block 80, Original Town 139.64 

David C. Huston C1/3 Lot 8, Block 80, Original Town 277.03 

Derek L. & Ruth E. Mitchell S 44' Lot 8, Block 80, Original Town 260.39 

Ronald E. & Sharon R. Trampe W1/3 Lot 2, Block 81, Original Town 165.97 

Kansas Nebraska Associate of 
Seventh Day Adventists 

E1/3 Lot 3, Block 81, Original Town 174.57 

James S. & Precious A. Reed C1/3 Lot 3, Block 81, Original Town 260.90 

Ronald C. & Vada M. Krauss W1/3 Lot 3, Lot 4, Block 81, Original Town 495.57 

Walnut Street Partnership Lot 5, Block 81, Original Town 465.66 

Walnut Street Partnership Lot 6, Block 81, Original Town 189.19 

Wheeler Street Partnership Lot 7; S2/3 Lot 8, Block 81, Original Town 914.73 

Kent A. Schroeder and Donald L. N1/3 Lot 8, Block 81, Original Town 264.41 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 7 - 
 

Rathman, Trustees 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lot 1, Block 82, Original Town 84.82 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lot 2, Block 82, Original Town 283.25 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lot 3, Block 82, Original Town 84.82 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lot 4, Block 82, Original Town 290.07 

Morris Publishing Group LLC Lots 5, 6, 7 and 8, Block 82, Original Town 2,901.17 

Grand Island Hospitality LLC Lots 1 and 2, Block 83, Original Town 414.27 

JOMIDA, Inc. Lots 3 and 4, Block 83, Original Town 983.54 

Michael & Sonya Wooden E 41' N 28' Lot 8, Block 83, Original Town 142.08 

Michael & Sonya Wooden Pt N1/3 and S2/3 Lot 8, Block 83, Original Town 206.42 

Contryman & Associates Lots 3 and 4, Block 85, Original Town 505.07 

G.I. Liederkranz Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4, Block 87, Original Town 311.72 

Enviro-Clean Contractors Inc. N 60' of Fr Lots 1, 2, 3, Block 89, Original Town 371.22 

Kathleen A. Campbell W 67' S 50' Lot 4, Hann Addition 134.82 

Hoos Insurance Agency Inc. Lot 4, Pt of Vac St, Block 97, Railroad Addition 
(Comp County Sub 15-11-9) 

291.19 

Filemon Sanchez N1/2 Lot 1, Block 98, Railroad Addition 23.68 

Arvid C. Carlson Lot 2, Block 98, Railroad Addition 122.33 

Floriberto Sanchez Benitez W 52' Lot 7, Block 98, Railroad Addition 223.12 

Filemon Sanchez E 14' Lot 7, Lot 8, Block 98, Railroad Addition 351.60 

Contryman & Associates Lots 1 and 2, Block 106, Railroad Addition 394.05 

The Muffler Shop, Inc. Lots 1 and 2, Block 107, Railroad Addition 387.35 

The Muffler Shop, Inc. Lots 3 & 4, Block 107, Railroad Addition 192.61 

Joseph M. & Lori Jean Brown S2/3 Lot 5, Block 107, Railroad Addition 358.39 

David E. Janda, DDS S 72' Lot 8, E 29.54' of S 71.5' Lot 7, Block 107, 
Railroad Addition 

332.96 

Barbara J. Clinch N 60' of E 22' of Lot 7, N 60' Lot 8, Block 107, 
Railroad Addition 

280.20 

Richard & Marilyn Fox Lots 1 and 2, Block 108, Railroad Addition 501.31 

Douglas Bookkeeping Service 
Inc. 

W 29' Lot 3, Lot 4, Block 108, Railroad Addition 609.91 

Donald J. & Janet L. Placke S 88' Lot 5, Block 108, Railroad Addition 140.59 

Sam Huston Rev Living Trust Lot 6, Block 108, Railroad Addition 195.22 

Bosselman, Inc. Lots 7 and 8, Block 108, Railroad Addition 608.98 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 8 - 
 

David A. & Carolyn J. Gilroy S 61' Lot 1; S 61' Lot 2, Block 109, Railroad 
Addition 

214.32 

Gregory T. & Gay L. Austin N 71' Lot 1; N 71' Lot 2, Block 109, Railroad 
Addition 

135.02 

J&B Rentals, LLC E 59.5' Lot 3, Block 109, Railroad Addition 147.97 

J&B Rentals, LLC W 6' 6.5" Lot 3, E 52'11" Lot 4, Block 109, Railroad 
Addition 

73.74 

Roger L & Sharon K. 
McShannon 

Lots 5 and 6, Block 109, Railroad Addition 227.57 

LPB, LLC Lots 7 & 8, Block 109, Railroad Addition 469.13 

Bonna Barton Wanek Lot 8, Block 114, Railroad Addition 771.74 

Margo Schager Lot A, Gilbert’s North Subdivision in part of Block 
79, Original Town 

165.86 

Equitable Building & Loan Assn Lot B, Gilberts North Subdivision in part of Block 
79, Original Town 

173.21 

Equitable Building & Loan 
Assoc of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 102 155.38 

Equitable Building & Loan 
Assoc of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 103 226.71 

Equitable Building & Loan 
Assoc of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 104 557.15 

Equitable Building & Loan  
Assoc of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 201A 492.38 

Devco Investment Corporation Yancey Condominium 301 106.82 

Arvon & Luella Marcotte Yancey Condominium 302 77.57 

Thomas & Nita Farr Yancey Condominium 303 110.33 

William L. Zins Yancey Condominium 304 101.66 

Dudley & Diana Baxter Yancey Condominium 401 78.84 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 402 89.94 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 403 86.36 

Michael D. Jones Yancey Condominium 404 142.81 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 405 86.78 

Larry D. Ruth Yancey Condominium 406 122.41 

Wyndell & Barbara Fordham Yancey Condominium 407 134.40 

Archway Partnership Yancey Condominium 501 113.89 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 502 92.44 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 9 - 
 

Dudley & Diana Baxter Yancey Condominium 503 86.42 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 505 86.84 

Robert A. Cieloha Yancey Condominium 506 122.50 

Kelvin Paul & Bonnie Diane 
Davis 

Yancey Condominium 507 138.51 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 601 79.61 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 602 92.60 

Colleen A. O'Neill                        
Donald Matthews 

Yancey Condominium 603 124.07 

Daniel F. Clyne Yancey Condominium 604 99.96 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 605 86.94 

Ryan G. Hansen Yancey Condominium 606 85.99 

Charmaine L. Arp Yancey Condominium 607 129.92 

Laura J. Johnson Yancey Condominium 701 87.05 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 702 92.72 

Richard & Margaret Johnson Yancey Condominium 703 86.67 

Art & Jan Burtscher Yancey Condominium 704 143.12 

Michelle R. Rathjen Yancey Condominium 705 95.62 

Clifton J. Long, Sandra A. 
Thinnes 

Yancey Condominium 706 85.74 

Nelse Zachry Yancey Condominium 707 156.63 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 801 79.77 

Mapes & Co. Partnership Yancey Condominium 802 92.81 

Mapes & Co. Partnership Yancey Condominium 803 101.48 

Judy J. Arnett Yancey Condominium 804 163.99 

Wendy Alexander              
Christine Alexander-Johnson 

Yancey Condominium 805 122.31 

Jack Nelson Yancey Condominium 806 93.30 

James F. Nissan Rev Trust Yancey Condominium 901 79.80 

Elaine & Everett Evnen Yancey Condominium 902 92.88 

Elaine & Everett Evnen Yancey Condominium 903 101.54 

Ann C. Atkins Yancey Condominium 904 149.69 

Kerry A. Rodocker Yancey Condominium 905 99.56 

Donald Jurewicz Yancey Condominium 906 152.37 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 10 - 
 

Linda Todd Yancey Condominium 1001 87.24 

David H. Wren Yancey Condominium 1002 92.91 

Jeremy S. & Jack L. Gillam Yancey Condominium 1003 101.60 

Ruth E. Megard, Trustee Yancey Condominium 1005 108.59 

Tera VanWinkle  Yancey Condominium 1006 155.68 

John Patrick Tooley Yancey Condominium 1101 87.36 

Linda L. Clare Rev Trust Yancey Condominium 1102 93.00 

Lynn A. Buckley Yancey Condominium 1103 111.14 

Frank L. Hoelck Trust Yancey Condominium 1104 155.99 

Elizabeth W. Mayer Yancey Condominium 1105 108.74 

Elizabeth W. Mayer Yancey Condominium 1106 186.31 

Home Federal Savings & Loan 
Assn 

Lot 3, Hann's 4th Addition 1,913.59 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 002 10.42 

Artvest III Yancey Condominium 001 26.70 

Bonna Barton Wanek S 88' Lot 7, Block 114, Railroad Addition 50.24 

Roxann Ellison W 18.9' of E 33' of S 25.1' Lot 7, Block 65, Original 
Town 

56.89 

Equitable Building & Loan 
Assoc of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 101 37.57 

Equitable Building & Loan 
Assoc of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 201B 59.50 

Equitable Building & Loan 
Assoc of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 201C 149.79 

Equitable Building & Loan 
Assoc of Grand Island 

Yancey Condominium 201D 114.25 

Home Federal Savings & Loan 
Assoc. of Grand Island 

Pt Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 7; all of Lots 5 and 6; pt 
Vacated Alley, Block 89, Original Town 

389.81 

James & Mavis Reiter Lot 2, Jensen Subdivision 97.40 

Furniture Clearing House, Inc. Lot 2, Ziller Subdivision 425.74 

Salvation Army Block 113 and part of vacated alley, Railroad 
Addition 

180.82 

City of Grand Island S1/2 of Lot 1, Block 58, Original Town 31.66 

 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9138 (Cont.) 
 

- 11 - 
 

 SECTION 2.  The special tax shall become delinquent in fifty (50) days from date 

of this levy; the entire amount so assessed and levied against each lot or tract may be paid within 

fifty (50) days from the date of this levy without interest and the lien of special tax thereby 

satisfied and released. After the same shall become delinquent, interest at the rate of fourteen 

percent (14%) per annum shall be paid thereon. 

 SECTION 3.  The city treasurer of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, is hereby 

directed to collect the amount of said taxes herein set forth as provided by law. 

 SECTION 4.  Such special assessments shall be paid into a fund to be designated 

as the "Downtown Bus iness Improvement District No. 5". 

 SECTION 5.  Any provision of the Grand Island City Code, any ordinance, or 

part of an ordinance in conflict herewith is hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 6.  This ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its 

passage and publication, in pamphlet form, within fifteen days in one issue of the Grand Island 

Independent as provided by law. 

 Enacted:  September 11, 2007. 

 
   ____________________________________ 
   Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



Item F4
#9139 - Consideration of Amendments to Chapter 13 of the Grand 
Island City Code Relative to Occupation Tax for Downtown 
Improvement and Parking District No. 1
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Consideration of Amending City Code Chapter 13-3 

Relative to Tax Rate for Downtown Improvement and 
Parking District No. 1 

 
Item #’s:  F-4 
 
Presenter(s): Dave Springer, Finance Director 
 
 

Background  
 
This request is the annual Council action to establish the occupation tax that supports the 
budget for Downtown Improvement and Parking District No. 1. Assessments in this 
district are based upon an occupation tax on the public space of the businesses operating 
within the District and are ordinarily paid by the business occupants of the space. This 
district has been in place since 1975, and is primarily focused on physical improvements 
and maintenance of public parking lots and green areas and other activities as allowed by 
NE Rev Statutes 19-4016-4038. 
 

 
Discussion 

 
The FY2007-2008 occupation tax factor is $.1432 per square foot of public use space, 
with a minimum annual fee of $90.80. Total non-exempt footage in the District is 
275,515 which would provide for occupation taxes of $39,997. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the amendment to the city code.   
2. Modify the amendment to meet the wishes of the Council. 
3. Deny the amendment. 



 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the amendment to City Code. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Approve the Amendment to City Code Chapter 13-3 relative to the tax rate for the 
Downtown Improvement and Parking District No. 1. 



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 6, 2007 ¤   City Attorney  

ORDINANCE NO. 9139 
 
 An ordinance to amend Chapter 13 of the Grand Island City Code; to amend 

Section 3 pertaining to the annual rate of the general license and occupation tax and 

classification of businesses; to repeal Section 3 as now existing, and any ordinance or parts of 

ordinances in conflict herewith; and to provide for publication and the effective date of this 

ordinance. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 13-3 of the Grand Island City Code is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

§13-3.  Tax Rate   
 The annual rate of the general license and occupation tax and classification of businesses shall be as 
follows: 

(1) $00.14321370 per square foot floor space upon all space used for business and professional offices in the 
district; provided, 

(2) $90.8093.80 minimum annual tax for any single business or professional office should the tax rate under 
(1) above be less than $90.8093.80. 

Amended by Ordinance No. 8839, effective 10-1-2003 
Amended by Ordinance No. 8934, effective 10-1-2004 
Amended by Ordinance No. 9004, effective 10-1-2005 
Amended by Ordinance No. 9139, effective 10-1-2007 

 
 SECTION 2.  Section 13-3 as now existing, and any ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed. 

 SECTION 3.  The validity of any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase 

of this ordinance shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other section, subsection, 

sentence, clause, or phrase thereof. 

 SECTION 4.  That this ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after 

its passage and publication, within fifteen days in one issue of the Grand Island Independent as 

provided by law. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9139  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

 Enacted:  September 11, 2007. 

 
   ____________________________________ 
   Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G1
Approving Minutes of August 28, 2007 City Council Meeting
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

City of Grand Island City Council



CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA 
 

MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
August 28, 2007 

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Grand Island, Nebraska was conducted in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 100 East First 
Street, on August 28, 2007. Notice of the meeting was given in The Grand Island Independent 
on August 22, 2007. 
 
Council President Bob Meyer called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The following City 
Council members were present: Councilmember’s Brown, Zapata, Nickerson, Gericke, Gilbert, 
Whitesides, Niemann, and Meyer. Mayor Hornady and Councilmember’s Haase and Carney 
were absent. The following City Officials were present: Interim City Administrator/City 
Attorney Dale Shotkoski, City Clerk RaNae Edwards, Finance Director David Springer, and 
Public Works Director Steve Riehle. 
 
INVOCATION was given by Pastor Nancy Lambert, Trinity United Methodist Church, 511 
North Elm Street followed by the PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
MAYOR COMMUNICATION: President Meyer acknowledged Community Youth Council 
members Ben Robbins, Lauren Shoemaker, and Sammy Sayavongsa. 
 
PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
Proclamation “Preparedness Month” September 2007. Mayor Hornady had proclaimed the 
month of September 2007 as “Preparedness Month”. Jon Rosenlund, Emergency Management 
Director was present to receive the Proclamation. 
 
ADJOURN TO BOARD OF EQUALIZATION: Motion by Whitesides, second by Nickerson, 
carried unanimously to adjourn to the Board of Equalization. 
 
#2007-BE-4 – Consideration of Determining Benefits for 2006 Weed Abatement Program. Wes 
Nespor, Assistant City Attorney reported that under Chapter 17 of the Grand Island City Code, 
the City had several properties which were not mowed of which the City contracted to have 
taken care of. The City Council in its’ capacity as the Board of Equalization was required to 
determine the benefits for the 2006 Weed Abatement Program. This item was before Council on 
July 24, 2007, but due to publication requirements and a change in ownership this item was 
before the Council again. 
 
Motion by Whitesides, second by Brown to approve Resolutions #2007-BE-4. Upon roll call 
vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION: Motion by Whitesides, second by Gilbert carried 
unanimously to return to Regular Session. 
 



Page 2, City Council Regular Meeting, August 28, 2007 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Public Hearing Concerning Blight/Substandard Study for Redevelopment Area NO. 7 Located 
1/2 Mile East of Highway 281 and 1/2 Mile West of South Locust Street between Schimmer 
Drive and Wildwood Drive. Chad Nabity, Regional Planning Director reported that the Grand 
Island Area Economic Development Corporation (GIAEDC) commissioned a 
Blight/Substandard Study for Redevelopment Area No. 7 which included 498.5 acres located 
primarily one-half mile east of U.S. Highway 281 and one-half mile west of South Locust Street 
between Schimmer Drive and Wildwood Drive. The Regional Planning Commission met on 
August 1, 2007 approving the blight declaration. Marlan Ferguson representing the Economic 
Development Corporation spoke in support. No further public testimony was heard. 
 
Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement Located on the South Side of the Central 
Nebraska Regional Airport between Sky Park Road & Shady Bend Roads (Hall County Airport 
Authority). Gary Mader, Utilities Director reported that acquisition of a utility easement located 
on the south side of the Central Nebraska Regional Airport between Sky Park Road and Shady 
Bend Road was needed in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and repair all 
utilities. This easement would be used to locate water, sewer and natural gas utilities from Sky 
Park Road, across the southern end of the airport to north of the golf course and finally to the 
new National Guard Helicopter facility at Airport Road and Shady Bend Road. These utilities 
would provide service to the new helicopter facility. No public testimony was heard. 
 
Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement Located South of Old Potash Highway and 
East of North Road (Little B’s Corporation). Gary Mader, Utilities Director reported that 
acquisition of a utility easement located south of Old Potash Highway and east of North Road 
was needed in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and repair all utilities. This 
easement would be used to provide utilities to the new Westgate Industrial Park 2nd Subdivision. 
No public testimony was heard. 
 
ORDINANCES: 
 
Councilmember Whitesides moved “that the statutory rules requiring ordinances to be read by 
title on three different days be suspended and that ordinances numbered: 
 
 #9133 – Consideration of Electric Utility Rate Increase 
 #9134 – Consideration of Assessments for 2006 Weed Abatement Program 
 #9135 – Consideration of Approving FY 2007-2008 Annual Single City Budget, The 

Annual Appropriations Bill Including Addendum #1 
 
be considered for passage on the same day upon reading by number only and that the City Clerk 
be permitted to call out the number of these ordinances on first reading and then upon final 
passage and call for a roll call vote on each reading and then upon final passage.” 
Councilmember Gilbert second the motion. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
Gary Mader, Utilities Director reported that Ordinance #9133 was an increase of $0.001 per 
kWH due to increased costs for materials and fuel. Also mentioned was from 1980 to 2005 the 
Electric Utility did not increase electric rates. Last year the Council discussed rates being spread 
out over linger time frames. 



Page 3, City Council Regular Meeting, August 28, 2007 
 
 
 

 
Wes Nespor, Assistant City Attorney reported that Ordinance #9134 referred to the 
aforementioned Public Hearing. 
 
David Springer, Finance Director reported that Ordinance #9135 was one of the final steps in 
approving the FY 2007-2008 City Budget. The final step approving the tax request would be brought 
back to council at the September 11, 2007 Council meeting. 
 
Motion by Whitesides, second by Brown to approve Ordinances #9133, #9134 and #9135.  
 
City Clerk:  Ordinances #9133, #9134 and #9135 on first reading. All those in favor of the 
passage of these ordinances on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted 
aye. Motion adopted. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinances #9133, #9134 and #9135 on final passage. All those in favor of the 
passage of these ordinances on final passage, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted 
aye. Motion adopted. 
 
President Meyer: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon final passage, 
Ordinances #9133, #9134 and #9135 are declared to be lawfully adopted upon publication as 
required by law. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: Motion by Gilbert, second by Gericke to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
Approving Minutes of August 14, 2007 City Council Regular Meeting. 
 
Approving Minutes of August 21, 2007 City Council Special Meeting. 
 
#2007-198 – Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement Located on the South Side of the 
Central Nebraska Regional Airport between Sky Park Road and Shady Bend Road (Hall County 
Airport Authority). 
 
#2007-199 – Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement Located South of Potash Highway and 
East of North Road (Little B’s Corporation). 
 
#2007-200 – Approving Bid Award for Chimney Repair at the Platte Generating Station with 
Gerard Chimney Co. of St. Louis, Missouri in an Amount of $45,400.00. 
 
#2007-201 – Approving Bid Award for Outage Cleaning Services at the Platte Generating 
Station with W-S Industrial Services, Council Bluffs, Iowa in an Amount of $80,787.00. 
 
#2007-202 – Approving Change Order #1 – Water Main District 455 – Park-View Area with 
Starostka Group Unlimited, Inc., of Grand Island, Nebraska for an Increase of $8,910.00 and a 
revised Contact Amount of $228,772.80. 
 



Page 4, City Council Regular Meeting, August 28, 2007 
 
 
 

#2007-203 – Approving Oversize of Water Main Project 2006-W-8 – Copper Creek Estates 
Subdivision – Old Potash Highway and Engleman Road with W. C. “Dub” Baker – Re-Max 
Realty Specialist of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of $36,341.37. 
 
#2007-204 – Approving Purchase of Two (2) 621 D Wheel Loaders for use in the Sludge 
Disposal Operation at Waste Water Division with Mid-Land Equipment of Omaha, Nebraska in 
an Amount of $24,500.00 (after trade-in). 
 
#2007-205 – Approving Program Agreement with the Nebraska Department of Roads for Safe 
Route to School Funding for the “Walk to Walnut” Project in an Amount of $269,644.00 Grant 
Funds. 
 
#2007-206 – Approving Amendment NO. 2 to the Interlocal Agreement with the Central District 
Health Department. 
 
#2007-207 – Approving Interlocal Agreement Between the Cities of Grand Island, Kearney, 
North Platte and the Village of Alda Regarding Direct Negotiations of Rate Changes with 
Northwestern Energy. 
 
#2007-208 – Approving Purchase of Furniture Systems from State Contract for Law 
Enforcement Center with Surroundings, Inc. in an Amount of $153,189.51. 
 
#2007-209 – Approving Bid Award for River-Way Hike/Bike Trail Construction Project STPB-
40(53) with The Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of 
$339,423.85 with Matching Grant Funds paid by the State of Nebraska in the Amount of 80%. 
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
 
#2007-210 – Consideration of Approving 1% Increase to the Lid Limit. David Springer, Finance 
Director reported that in 1998 the Nebraska State Legislature passed LB 989 which put a cap on the 
amount of restricted revenues a political subdivision could budget for. The restricted revenues that 
the City of Grand Island included in the budget were Property Taxes, Local Option Sales Tax, Motor 
Vehicle Tax and State Aid. Of those restricted revenues, property tax was the only revenue that the 
City could control. The increase in restricted funds authority using the 1% additional amount and the 
population growth (when available) was not an increase in budgeted revenues. It only provided the 
ability to increase restricted revenues, particularly property tax, in a future year if necessary. 
 
Motion by Zapata, second by Whitesides to approve Resolution 2007-210. Upon roll call vote, all 
voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
#2007-211 – Consideration of Approving Blight/Substandard Study for Redevelopment Area 
No. 7 Located 1/2 Mile East of Highway 281 and 1/2 Mile West of South Locust Street between 
Schimmer Drive and Wildwood Drive. Chad Nabity, Regional Planning Director reported this 
item related to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-1. 
 
Discussion was held on the importance of future development and benefits to this area by 
designating this area as substandard and blighted. 
 



Page 5, City Council Regular Meeting, August 28, 2007 
 
 
 

Motion by Gilbert, second by Brown to approve Resolution #2007-211 with the following 
findings of fact: 
 

• The Blight/Substandard Study presented by Hanna:Keelan, with the exception of 
Amendment B, the Redevelopment Plan; 

• The written testimony by the Grand Island Economic Development Corporation (see 
attached); 

• The buildings located on the property identified as aged/dilapidated; 
• The age of structures are at least 40 years old; 
• The property is different from other properties because of location on the urban fringe of 

the community in that it is directly adjacent to an industrial area on the west, directly 
adjacent to the power plant on the south with high voltage lines, as well as, close to rail 
lines, which would be good for manufacturing growth, but possibly detrimental for other 
development; 

• The location of major commercial arterial roads between, but not on , property; and, 
• Public intervention is deemed appropriate for the redevelopment of the area due to 

inadequate infrastructure, specifically sewer and water, and the high cost of making that 
available. 

 
Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
PAYMENT OF CLAIMS: 
 
Motion by Brown, second by Zapata to approve the Claims for the period of August 15, 2007 
through August 28, 2007, for a total amount of $4,393,414.05. Motion adopted unanimously.  
 
Motion by Brown, second by Nickerson to approve the following Claims for the Library 
Expansion for the period of August 15, 2007 through August 28, 2007: 
 
#80 $4,870.00 
#81 $   323.00 
 
Motion adopted unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
RaNae Edwards 
City Clerk 





Item G2
Approving Request of Alfredo Ascencion, 816 South Pine Street 
for Liquor Manager Designation for Fiesta Latina/Nebraska 
Music Hall, 2815 South Locust Street
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Request of Alfredo Ascencion, 816 South Pine Street for 

Liquor Manager Designation for Fiesta Latina/Nebraska 
Music Hall, 2815 South Locust Street 

 
Item #’s: G-2 
 
Presenter(s): RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 
 

Background  
 
Alfredo Ascencion, 816 South Pine Street has submitted an application with the City 
Clerk’s Office for a Liquor Manager Designation in conjunction with the Class “C-
34765” Liquor License for Fiesta Latina/Nebraska Music Hall, 2815 South Locust Street. 
 
This application has been reviewed by the Police Department and City Clerk’s Office.  
 

Discussion 
 

City Council action is required and forwarded to the Nebraska Liquor Cont rol 
Commission for issuance of all liquor manager designations. All departmental reports 
have been received. See attached Police Department report. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the request. 
2. Forward the request with no recommendation. 
3. Take no action on the request. 

 
 
 



Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the request for Liquor 
Manager Designation. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the request of Alfredo Ascencion, 816 South Pine Street for Liquor 
Manager Designation in conjunction with the Class “C-34765” Liquor License for Fiesta 
Latina/Nebraska Music Hall, 2815 South Locust Street with the stipulation that Mr. 
Ascencion complete a state approved alcohol server/seller training program. 









Item G3
#2007-212 - Approving Bid Award for Police Department Office 
Furnishings at Law Enforcement Center
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Lamken

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steven Lamken, Police Chief 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Furniture Bid Awards 
 
Item #’s:  G-3 
 
Presenter(s): Steven Lamken, Police Chief 
 
 

Background  
 

The Police Department and Sheriff's Office are preparing for moving to the new Law 
Enforcement Center in late 2007. The purchase of new furnishings for the center is a part 
of this project. The Police Department let bids for various quantities of thirty three items  
of furniture. We received bids from five vendors. We are recommending awarding bids to 
four vendors for bid items for a total cost of $142,393.81.  
 

Discussion 
 

The Police Department let bids for furnishings for the new law enforcement center. Five 
bids were received and opened on August 21, 2007. The bids were for various quantities 
of thirty three separate items. Bidders were instructed that bid awards would be made to 
separate vendors on bid items based upon cost and conformance to bid specifications. 
Items #26 through #33 are wood veneer and laminate case goods and were to be awarded 
as a group to ensure conformity of style and finishes. 
 
The Police Department reviewed the bids and information provided with them. We are 
recommending that bids be awarded to four vendors based upon conformance to 
specifications and costs for items. The Police Department's recommendations for the 
purchase of bid items is displayed in an attached report. The report provides the item 
number, vendor, cost per item, number of items to be purchased and total cost. The Bid 
Summary provides a more detailed description of each item. 
 
The total cost of items bid is $142,393.81. A breakdown of awards by vendor is: 
 
 
     Eakes Office - Grand Island -                          $61,367.00 
     Office Net - Grand Island -                              $50,003.37 



     Surroundings - Omaha -                                   $30,174.50 
     KI International - Green Bay, WS -                 $     848.94 
 
The total costs are below the estimated cost for the bid process. Funding for the purchase 
of furnishings for the center is provided in the center budget. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the purchase of items #1 
through #33 of the law enforcement center furnishing bids as recommended by the Police 
Department for a cost of $142,393.81 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the purchase of items # 1 through #33 of the law enforcement center 
furnishing bids as recommended by the Police Department for a cost of $142393.81 with 
the following breakdown among vendors: 
 
     Items #1 through 9, #13, #19 through #22 and items #24 and #25 to Eakes Office Plus 
of Grand Island for $61,367.00 
 
     Items #14 through #18 and #26 through #33 to Officenet Inc. of Grand Island for 
$50,003.37 
 
     Items #10 through #13 to Surroundings LLC of Omaha for $30,174.50 
 
     Item #23 to KI International of Green Bay, WI for $848.94 



Furniture Bid Awards by Vendor

Vendor Item # Cost per Unit# Units Total

Eakes 1 2,103.00$     2 4,206.00$     
Eakes 2 632.00$        6 3,792.00$     
Eakes 3 180.00$        133 23,940.00$   
Eakes 4 108.00$        6 648.00$        
Eakes 5 209.00$        2 418.00$        
Eakes 6 179.00$        4 716.00$        
Eakes 7 564.00$        1 564.00$        
Eakes 8 508.00$        18 9,144.00$     
Eakes 9 573.00$        9 5,157.00$     
Eakes 13 177.00$        22 3,894.00$     
Eakes 19 109.00$        25 2,725.00$     
Eakes 20 135.00$        2 270.00$        
Eakes 21 120.00$        9 1,080.00$     
Eakes 22 143.00$        1 143.00$        
Eakes 24 1,493.00$     2 2,986.00$     
Eakes 25 1,684.00$     1 1,684.00$     

Total 61,367.00$   

KI 23 282.98$        3 $848.94

Total $848.94

Office Net 14 566.29$        15 8,494.35$     
Office Net 15 594.81$        5 2,974.05$     
Office Net 16 364.63$        15 5,469.45$     
Office Net 17 337.17$        11 3,708.87$     
Office Net 18 301.16$        6 1,806.96$     
Office Net 26 252.66$        5 1,263.33$     
Office Net 27 1,416.63$     7 9,916.41$     
Office Net 28 2,045.67$     2 4,091.34$     
Office Net 29 800.08$        1 800.08$        
Office Net 30 780.11$        7 5,460.77$     
Office Net 31 487.08$        8 3,896.64$     
Office Net 32 205.34$        8 1,642.72$     
Office Net 33 478.40$        1 478.40$        

Total 50,003.37$   



Surroundings 10 361.00$        38 13,718.00$   
Surroundings 11 361.00$        32 11,552.00$   
Surroundings 12 288.50$        17 4,904.50$     

Total 30,174.50$   

Total 142,393.81$ 



 1 

 

Purchasing Division of Legal Department 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM    

          
 Wes Nespor, Assistant City Attorney 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  August 21, 2007 at 11:00 a.m. 
 
FOR:     Purchase of Police Department Office Furnishings 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Police 
 
ESTIMATE:    $220,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   40015025-9006 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  July 27, 2007 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 3 
 
 
cc: Steve Lamken, Police Chief       Robert Falldorf, Police Captain 
 Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney      Wes Nespor, Assistant City Attorney 
 Sherry Peters, Legal Secretary 
 
 
               P-1182 



 2 

Bidder:   Surroundings, LLC 
   Omaha, NE 
Bid Security:  Liberty Mutual Insurance Co. 
 
 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

10 Chair La-Z-Boy Task 200 Upholstered/with arms 38 $361.00 $13,718.00 
11 Chair Styles Click 

Intensive 
Use 

Large seat/high back/upholstered 
with adjustable arms 

32 $331.00 $10,592.00 

11 Chair La-Z-Boy Task 200 Upholstered/with adj. arms 32 $361.00 $11,552.00 
12 Chair Stylex Click Intensive use/large seat/high back 

upholstered/without arms 
17 $288.50 $4,904.50 

14 File Knoll Calibre 5 drawer/42” lateral/four file, one 
storage 

15 
(10 1/2” Drawer) 
(12” Drawer) 

 
$658.50 
$670.50 

 
$9,877.50 
$10,057.50 

15 File Knoll Calibre 5 drawer/42” lateral/five file 5 
(10 1/2” Drawer) 
(12” Drawer) 

 
$614.07 
$626.90 

 
$3,070.35 
$3,134.50 

16 File Knoll Calibre 3 drawer/42” lateral/three file 15 
(10 1/2” Drawer) 
(12” Drawer) 

 
$412.05 
$416.95 

 
$6,180.75 
$6,254.25 

17 Storage 
Cabinet 

Knoll Calibre 36” wide/18” deep/65 ½” 
high/multiple shelves 

11 $375.42 $4,129.62 

18 Bookcase Knoll Calibre 36” wide/full height/w adjustable 
shelves 

6 $310.75 $1,864.50 

24 Table Mayline Conference 48” x 144”/ 24” wide ganging 
units/Arc or oval ends/laminate 
top/fixed metal legs 

2 $1,658.40 $3,316.80 

25 Table Mayline Conference 48” x 194”/24” wide ganging 
units/Arc or oval ends/laminate 
top/fixed metal legs 

1 $1,723.20 $1,723.20 



 3 

Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

26 Table   42” round with metal base/wood 
laminate top 

5 $447.25 $2,236.25 

27 Desk Indiana 
Desk 
Encompass 

 72” x 36”/w box, box, file pedestal/pencil 
drawer/w 24” x 48” return w/o pedestal, 
articulating mouse/keyboard wood 
veneer/matching wood laminate 
top/minimum 10 year warranty. Owner 
will designate number of left or right hand 
returns 

7 $1,483.00 $10,381.00 

28 Desk Indiana 
Desk 
Encompass 

 72” x 36”/w bow front/w box, box,  file 
pedestal/pencil drawer/w 24” x 72” return 
w/file, file pedestal, articulating 
mouse/keyboard wood veneer/matching 
wood laminate top/minimum 10 year 
warranty. Owner will designate number of 
left or right hand returns 

2 $1,849.50 $3,699.00 

29 Hutch Indiana 
Desk 
Encompass 

 15” deep; x 72” wide/wood doors/Tack 
board/Wood veneer to match desks in 
Item #26/minimum 10 year warranty 

1 $875.00 $875.00 

30 Hutch Indiana 
Desk 
Encompass 

 15” deep; x 66” wide/wood doors/Tack 
board/Wood veneer to match desks in 
Item #25/minimum 10 year warranty 

7 $819.00 $5,733.00 

31 File   2 drawer lateral/36” wide/minimum 10 
year warranty/wood veneer/laminate top 
to match desks in items #25 & #26 

8 $473.75 $3,790.00 

32 Bookcase   Top unit bookcase/36: wide/wood veneer 
to be used on top of files in item #28 

8 $312.41 $2,499.28 

33 Bookcase Indiana 
Desk  
36” x 72” 

 36’ x 65”/wood veneer/adjustable 
shelves/to match desks in #26 

1 $592.99 $592.99 

 



 4 

Bidder:   Norfolk Office Equipment 
   Norfolk, NE 
Bid Security:  $4,000.00 
 
 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

3 Chair Steelcase Player Upholstered/armless/high back/ 
extra padded seat 
Group 1 
Group 2 
Group 3 
Group 4 
Group 5 

133  
 
$153.06 
$162.11 
$170.71 
$177.59 
$184.04 

 
 
$20,356.98 
$21,560.63 
$22,704.43 
$23,619.47 
$24,477.32 

4 Chair 
Dollies 

  Adequate to place 50 chairs from 
Item #3 on dollies with casters 

 $110.94 $110.94 

7 Chair Steelcase Criterion Upholstered/mid-back/adjustable 
arms/task stool 
Group 1 
Group 2 
Group 3 
Group 4 
Group 5 

1  
 
$560.72 
$569.75 
$578.35 
$585.23 
$591.68 

 
 
$560.72 
$569.75 
$578.35 
$585.23 
$591.68 

8 Chair Steelcase Criterion 
4535331DP 

Upholstered/high back/adjustable 
arms/pivot arms 
Group 1 
Group 2 
Group 3 
Group 4 
Group 5 

18  
 
$494.50 
$503.53 
$523.13 
$519.01 
$525.46 

 
 
$8,901.00 
$9,063.54 
$9,416.34 
$9,342.18 
$9,458.28 



 5 

 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

10 Chair Steelcase Rally 
4571224 

Upholstered/High back/with arms 
Group 1 
Group 2 
Group 3 
Group 4 
Group 5 

38  
$364.21 
$373.24 
$381.84 
$388.72 
$395.17 

 
$13,839.98 
$14,183.12 
$14,509.92 
$14,771.36 
$15,016.46 

14 File Steelcase 200 Series 5 drawer/42” lateral/four file, one 
storage 

15 $677.68 $10,165.20 

15 File Steelcase 200 Series 5 drawer/42” lateral/five file 
(2LF18425AF w/5 roll-out shelves 
& receding doors) 

5 $684.13 $3,420.65 

16 File Steelcase 200 Series 3 drawer/42” lateral/three file 15 $469.13 $7,036.95 
17 Storage 

Cabinet 
Steelcase Universal 2 Door/locking/multiple shelves 11 $485.47 $5,340.17 

18 Bookcase Steelcase Universal 36” wide/65 ½” high/ w adjustable 
shelves 

6 $341.42 $2,048.52 

 
 
Bidder:   OfficeNet, Inc. 
   Grand Island, NE 
Bid Security:  $3,800.00 
 
 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid 
Price 

11 Chair OfficeMaster  Police/Dispatch chair w/arms 32 $467.98 $14,975.36 
12 Chair OfficeMaster  Police/Dispatch chair w/arms 17 $364.42 $6,195.14 
14 File Allsteel Persona 5 drawer/42”-4 file, 1-fixed 15 $566.29 $8,494.35 
15 File Allsteel Persona 5 drawer/42” lateral-5 file 5 $594.81 $2,974.05 
16 File Allsteel Persona 3 drawer/42” lateral-3 file 15 $364.63 $5,469.45 



 6 

17 Storage 
Cabinet 

Allsteel Persona 2 Door/locking storage cabinet 11 $337.17 $3,708.87 

18 Bookcase Allsteel Persona 36” wide/64.75” high Bookcase 6 $301.16 $1,806.96 
26 Table National  42” round with metal base/wood 

laminate top 
5 $252.66 $1,263.30 

27 Desk National  72” x 36”/w box, box, file pedestal/pencil 
drawer/w 24” x 48” return w/o pedestal, 
articulating mouse/keyboard wood 
veneer/matching wood laminate 
top/minimum 10 year warranty. Owner 
will designate number of left or right 
hand returns 

7 $1,416.63 $9,916.41 

28 Desk National  72” x 36”/w bow front/w box, box,  file 
pedestal/pencil drawer/w 24” x 72” return 
w/file, file pedestal, articulating 
mouse/keyboard wood veneer/matching 
wood laminate top/minimum 10 year 
warranty. Owner will designate number 
of left or right hand returns 

2 $2,045.67 $4,091.34 

29 Hutch National  15” deep; x 72” wide/wood doors/Tack 
board/Wood veneer to match desks in 
Item #26/minimum 10 year warranty 

1 $800.08 $800.08 

30 Hutch National  15” deep; x 66” wide/wood doors/Tack 
board/Wood veneer to match desks in 
Item #25/minimum 10 year warranty 

7 $780.11 $5,460.77 

31 File National  2 drawer lateral/36” wide/minimum 10 
year warranty/wood veneer/laminate top 
to match desks in items #25 & #26 

8 $487.08 $3,896.64 

32 Bookcase National  Top unit bookcase/36: wide/wood veneer 
to be used on top of files in item #28 

8 $205.34 $1,642.72 

33 Bookcase National  36’ x 65”/wood veneer/adjustable 
shelves/to match desks in #26 

1 $478.40 $478.40 

 
 



 7 

 
 
Bidder:   Eakes Office Plus  
   Grand Island, NE 
Bidder Security: $8,067.00 
 
 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

1 Chair Steelcase Jarrah 
SC22416 
SC2211 

Upholstered/plasticol arm caps 
chair-chair-table-chair ganged unit 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

2  
 
$1,738.00 
$1,825.00 
$1,912.00 
$1,846.00 
$2,051.00 
$2,103.00 

 
 
$3,476.00 
$3,650.00 
$3,824.00 
$3,692.00 
$4,102.00 
$4,206.00 

2 Chair Steelcase Jarrah 
SC2210 

Upholstered/wood arm caps 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

6  
$519.00 
$548.00 
$577.00 
$600.00 
$623.00 
$632.00 

 
$3,114.00 
$3,288.00 
$3,462.00 
$3,600.00 
$3,738.00 
$3,792.00 

3 Chair Steelcase Player Upholstered/armless/high 
back/extra padded seat 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

133  
 
$150.00 
$158.00 
$167.00 
$173.00 
$180.00 
$193.00 

 
 
$19,950.00 
$21,014.00 
$22,211.00 
$23,009.00 
$23,940.00 
$25,669.00 



 8 

 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

4 Chair 
Dollies 

  Adequate to place 50 chairs from 
Item #3 on dollies with casters 

6 $108.00 $648.00 

5 Chair Steelcase Player Upholstered/armless/high 
back/extra padded seat/with casters 
(Priced w/arms – armless not 
available) 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

2  
 
 
 
$165.00 
$174.00 
$183.00 
$189.00 
$196.00 
$209.00 

 
 
 
 
$330.00 
$348.00 
$366.00 
$378.00 
$392.00 
$418.00 

6 Chair Steelcase Patience 
70000 

Thermoplastic/Armless 4 $179.00 $716.00 

7 Chair Steelcase Criterion Upholstered/mid-back/adjustable 
arms/task stool 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

1  
 
$528.00 
$537.00 
$545.00 
$551.00 
$558.00 
$564.00 

 
 
$528.00 
$537.00 
$545.00 
$551.00 
$558.00 
$564.00 

8 Chair Steelcase Criterion 
4535331DP 

Upholstered/high back/adjustable 
arms/pivot arms 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

18  
 
$472.00 
$480.00 
$488.00 
$495.00 
$501.00 
$508.00 

 
 
$8,496.00 
$8,640.00 
$8,784.00 
$8,910.00 
$9,018.00 
$9,144.00 



 9 

 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

9 Chair Sit On It 
672M.A69 

Nonstop Upholstered/size 2/standard arms 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 

9  
$520.00 
$534.00 
$546.00 
$573.00 

 
$4,680.00 
$4,806.00 
$4,914.00 
$5,157.00 

10 Chair Rally 
4571224 

 Upholstered/High back/with arms 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

38  
$356.00 
$365.00 
$373.00 
$380.00 
$386.00 
$399.00 

 
$13,528.00 
$13,870.00 
$14,174.00 
$14,440.00 
$14,668.00 
$15,162.00 

11 Chair Stylex Click 
Intensive 
Use 

Large seat/high back/upholstered 
with adjustable arms 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

32  
 
$291.00 
$323.00 
$355.00 
$387.00 
$419.00 
$453.00 

 
 
$9,312.00 
$10,336.00 
$11,360.00 
$12,384.00 
$13,408.00 
$14,496.00 

11 Chair Sit-On-It TR2 Intensive Use High Back – 
Alternate Option 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 

32  
 
$283.00 
$293.00 
$305.00 
$331.00 

 
 
$9,056.00 
$9,376.00 
$9,760.00 
$10,592.00 



 10 

 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

12 Chair Stylex Click Intensive use/large seat/high back 
upholstered/without arms 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 
Grade 5 
Grade 6 

17  
 
$245.00 
$277.00 
$309.00 
$341.00 
$373.00 
$408.00 

 
 
$4,165.00 
$4,709.00 
$5,253.00 
$5,797.00 
$6,341.00 
$6,936.00 

12 Chair Sit-On-It TR2 Intensive Use High Back (armless) 
Alternate Option 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 
Grade 4 

17  
 
$237.00 
$248.00 
$260.00 
$286.00 

 
 
$4,029.00 
$4,216.00 
$4,420.00 
$4,862.00 

13 Chair Global SUPRA Upholstered Management Office 
(wide seat) 
Grade 1 
Grade 2 
Grade 3 

22  
 
$154.00 
$167.00 
$177.00 

 
 
$3,388.00 
$3,674.00 
$3,894.00 

14 File Steelcase 200 Series 5 drawer/42” lateral/four file, one 
storage 

15 $622.00 9,330.00 

15 File Steelcase 200 Series 5 drawer/42” lateral/five file 
(five file not available – quoted 
same as line 14) 

5 $622.00 $3,110.00 

16 File Steelcase 200 Series 3 drawer/42” lateral/three file 15 $424.00 6,360.00 
17 Storage 

Cabinet 
Steelcase Universal 2 Door/locking/multiple shelves 11 $602.00 $6,622.00 

18 Bookcase Steelcase Universal 36” wide/65 ½” high/w adjustable 
shelves 

6 $353.00 $2,118.00 



 11 

 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

19 Table Correll  72” x 18” x 
29”/lightweight/plywood framed 
honeycomb core/laminate 
tops/vinyl T molding 
(Quoted 72” x 24” size) 

25 $109.00 $2,725.00 

20 Table 
Truck 

 Horizontal For 72” tables/Capacity of 10 
tables storage per truck 

2 $135.00 $270.00 

21 Table Correll  96” x 30” x 
29”/lightweight/plywood framed 
honeycomb core/laminate 
tops/Vinyl T molding 

9 $120.00 1,080.00 

22 Table 
Truck 

 Horizontal For 96” tables/Capacity of 10 
tables storage per truck 

1 $143.00 $143.00 

23 Table Midwest 
Folding 

NLW 60” Round/29” high/ABS top 
shell/honeycomb core/folding 
metal legs 

3 $293.00 $879.00 

24 Table Steelcase 
Turnstone 
Groupwork 
Tables 

 48’ x 144”/24” wide ganging 
units/Arc or oval ends/laminate 
top/fixed metal legs 

2 $1,493.00 $2,986.00 

25 Table Steelcase 
Turnstone 
Groupwork 
Tables 

 48” x 192”/24” wide ganging 
units/Arc or oval ends/laminate 
top/fixed metal legs 

1 $1,684.00 $1,684.00 

26 Table OFS 
Impulse 
Casegoods 

 42” round with metal base/wood 
laminate top 

5 $395.00 $1,975.00 



 12 

 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

27 Desk OFS 
Impulse 
Casegoods 

 72” x 36”/w box, box, file pedestal/pencil 
drawer/w 24” x 48” return w/o pedestal, 
articulating mouse/keyboard wood 
veneer/matching wood laminate 
top/minimum 10 year warranty. Owner 
will designate number of left or right hand 
returns 

7 $1,581.00 $11,067.00 

28 Desk OFS 
Impulse 
Casegoods 

 72” x 36”/w bow front/w box, box,  file 
pedestal/pencil drawer/w 24” x 72” return 
w/file, file pedestal, articulating 
mouse/keyboard wood veneer/matching 
wood laminate top/minimum 10 year 
warranty. Owner will designate number of 
left or right hand returns 

2 $2,130.00 $4,260.00 

29 Hutch OFS 
Impulse 
Casegoods 

 15” deep; x 72” wide/wood doors/Tack 
board/Wood veneer to match desks in 
Item #26/minimum 10 year warranty 

1 $874.00 $874.00 

30 Hutch OFS 
Impulse 
Casegoods 

 15” deep; x 66” wide/wood doors/Tack 
board/Wood veneer to match desks in 
Item #25/minimum 10 year warranty 

7 $846.00 $5,922.00 

31 File OFS 
Impulse 
Casegoods 

 2 drawer lateral/36” wide/minimum 10 
year warranty/wood veneer/laminate top 
to match desks in items #25 & #26 

8 $640.00 $5,120.00 

32 Bookcase OFS 
Impulse 
Casegoods 

 Top unit bookcase/36: wide/wood veneer 
to be used on top of files in item #28 

8 $438.00 $3,504.00 

33 Bookcase OFS 
Impulse 
Casegoods 

 36’ x 65”/wood veneer/adjustable 
shelves/to match desks in #26 

1 $505.00 $505.00 

 
 
 



 13 

Bidder:   Krueger International, Inc. 
   Green Bay, WI 
Bidder Security: Travelers Casualty & Surety Company 
 
 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

3 Chair KI Piretti Upholstered/armless/sled base 133 $267.10 $35,524.30 
3 Chair KI Torsion 

Perry 
Versa Basic  

Upholstered/armless/sled base 
Alternate Bid 
Alternate Bid 

133 
 

$203.02 
$189.98 
$133.84 

$27,001.66 
$25,267.34 
$17,800.72 

4 Chair 
Dollies 

  
 
 

Adequate to place 50 chairs from 
Item #3 on dollies with casters. 
KI Piretti-stacks 8 high 
KI Torsion-stacks 6 high 
KI Perry-stacks 25 high 
KI Versa Basic-stacks 10 high 

 
 
7 
9 
2 
5 

 
 
$186.58 
$177.50 
$192.25 
$189.98 

 
 
$1,306.06 
$1,597.50 
$384.50 
$949.90 

5 Chair KI Torsion 
Dance 
M16 

Upholstered, armless/with casters 
Alternate Bid 
Alternate Bid 

2 $304.53 
$216.07 
$198.49 

$609.06 
$432.14 
$396.98 

10 Chair  
 
KI 
KI 

 
 
Engage 
Impress 

Upholstered/midback/adjustable 
arms 
Alternate Bid 
Alternate Bid 

38  
 
$462.75 
$297.73 

 
 
$17,584.50 
$11,313.74 

11 Chair  
 
KI 
KI 

 
 
Heroic 
Impulse 

Large seat/high back/upholstered 
with adjustable arms 
Alternate Bid includes pivot arms 
Alternate Bid includes pivot arms 

32  
 
$774.66 
$462.75 

 
 
$24,789.12 
$14,808.00 

13 Chair KI 
 
KI 

Piretti 
 
Torsion 

Upholstered, management office 
side chair/sled base/with arms 
Alternate Bid 

22 $330.62 
 
$181.47 

$7,273.64 
 
$3,992.34 



 14 

 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

14 File KI 
 
KI 

700 Series 
 
E-Series 

5 drawer/42” lateral/four file, one 
storage 
Alternate Bid 

15 $998.66 
 
$820.59 

$14,979.90 
 
$12,308.85 

15 File KI 
KI 

700 Series 
E-Series 

5 drawer/42” lateral/five file 
Alternate Bid 

5 $979.38 
$820.59 

$4,896.90 
$4,102.95 

16 File KI 
KI 

700 Series 
E-Series 

3 drawer/42” lateral/three file 
Alternate Bid 

15 $687.33 
$545.55 

$10,309.95 
$8,183.25 

17 Storage 
Cabinet 

KI 700 Series 2 Door/locking/multiple shelves 11 $585.81 $6,443.91 

18 Bookcase KI 700 Series 36” wide/full height/w adjustable 
shelves 

6 $479.20 $2,875.20 

19 Table KI Premier 
Folding 

72” x 18” x 
29”/lightweight/plywood framed 
honeycomb core/laminate 
tops/Vinyl T molding 

25 $137.81 $3,445.25 

20 Table 
Truck 

 Horizontal For 72” tables/Capacity of 10 
tables storage per truck 

2 $254.63 $509.26 

21 Table KI Premier 
Folding 

96” x 30” x 
29”/lightweight/plywood framed 
honeycomb core/laminate 
tops/Vinyl T molding 

9 $167.86 $1,510.74 

22 Table 
Truck 

 Horizontal For 96” tables/Capacity of 10 
tables storage per truck 

1 $279.01 $279.01 

23 Table KI Duralight 60” Round/29” high/ABS top 
shell/honeycomb core/folding legs 

3 $282.98 $848.94 



 15 

 
Item 
No. 

Specific 
Item 

Make Model Description # of Units Unit Bid Price Extended Bid Price 

24 Table Conference 
KI Portico 
 
 
KI 
KI 

 48” x 144”/24” wide ganging 
units/Arc or oval ends/laminate 
top/fixed metal legs-SM7305318 to 
match spec 
Alternate Bid – 24x48 Halfround 
Alternate Bid – 24x48 Rectangular 

2 
 
 
 
2 
4 

$4,221.90 
 
 
 
$438.37 
$344.80 

$8,443.80 
 
 
 
$876.74 
$1,379.20 

25 Table Conference 
KI Portico 
 
 
KI 
KI 

 48” x 192”/24” wide ganging 
units/Arc or oval ends/laminate 
top/fixed metal legs-SM7305323 to 
march spec 
Alternate Bid – 24x48 Halfround 
Alternate Bid – 24x60 Rectangular 

1 
 
 
 
2 
4 

$3,287.48 
 
 
 
$438.37 
$386.76 

$3,287.48 
 
 
 
$876.74 
$1,547.04 

 
 
Bidder:   Virco, Inc. 
   Torrance, CA 
   (No Bid) 
 
 
 
 
cc: Steve Lamken, Police Chief      Robert Falldorf, Police Captain 
 Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney     Wes Nespor, Assistant City Attorney 
 Sherry Peters, Legal Secretary 
 
 
                  P-1182 
 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-212 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited sealed bids for various items of office 
furnishings for the Law Enforcement Center, according to plans and specifications on file with the Grand 
Island Police Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 21, 2007, bids were received, opened and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon cost and in accordance with the terms of the advertisement of 
bids and plans and specifications and all other statutory requirements contained therein, it is recommended 
that the bid be awarded to four vendors: Eakes Office Supply of Grand Island, Nebraska; Office Net of 
Grand Island, Nebraska; Surroundings of Omaha, Nebraska; and, KI International of Green Bay, 
Wisconsin, for a total bid amount of $142,393.81; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the bids submitted are less than the estimate for the office furnishings. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bids of Eakes Office Supply of Grand Island, 
Nebraska; Office Net of Grand Island, Nebraska; Surroundings of Omaha, Nebraska; and, KI 
International of Green Bay, Wisconsin for office furnishings for the Law Enforcement Center for a total bid 
amount of $142,393.81is hereby approved. 
 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G4
#2007-213 - Approving Bid Award for Window Treatments at Law 
Enforcement Center
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Lamken

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steven Lamken, Police Chief 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Approving Bid Award for Window Treatments at the 

Law Enforcement Center 
 
Item #’s:  G-4 
 
Presenter(s): Steven Lamken, Police Chief 
 
 

Background  
 

The Police Department and Sheriff's Office are preparing for moving to the new Law 
Enforcement Center in late 2007. The purchase of new window treatments for the center 
is a part of this project. The Police Department let bids for the purchase and installation 
of vertical blinds for the law enforcement center. We received bids from three vendors on 
August 28, 2007. We are recommending awarding the bid for vertical blinds to Floor to 
Ceiling of Grand Island for $19,136.15.  
 

Discussion 
 

The Police Department let bids for the purchase and installation of window treatments 
consisting of vertical blinds for the new law enforcement center windows. We received 
three bids from vendors. Bids were opened August 28, 2007. The low bid, which also met 
all specifications, was submitted by Narber Enterprises LLC, Floor to Ceiling of Grand 
Island for a cost of $19,136.15. The bid price was under the estimated cost for the 
purchase and installation of window treatments. Funding for the purchase and installation 
of window treatments is provided for in the facility budget.  
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to Approve  
2. Take no action on the issue 
3. Postopone the issue to a future date 



 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the bid of Narber Enterprises 
LLC, Floor to Ceiling of 2627 W. Hwy 30, Grand Island, NE for the purchase and 
installation of window treatements in the law enforcement center for the bid price of 
$19,136.15. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the bid of Narber Enterprises LLC, Floor to Ceiling of 2627 W. Hwy 
30, Grand Island, NE for the purchase and installation of window treatments in the law 
enforcement center for the bid price of $19, 136.15. 



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
Dale M. Shotkoski, Assistant City Attorney 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  August 28, 2007 at 11:00 a.m. 
 
FOR:     Window Treatments for Law Enforcement Center 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Police 
 
ESTIMATE:    $35,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   40015025-9006 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  July 27, 2007 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 6 
 
 SUMMARY 
 
Bidder:  Drapery Den, Inc.    Diamond Vogel 
   Grand Island, NE    Grand Island, NE 
Bid Security:  $1,448.00     No Bid Bond 
 
Bid Price:  $27,062.00     $21,475.00 
 
 
Bidder:  Floor to Ceiling 
   Grand Island, NE 
Bid Security:  $956.81 
 
Bid Price:  $19,136.15 
 
 
cc: Steve Lamken, Police Chief    Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney 
 Wes Nespor, Assist. City Attorney   Sherry Peters, Legal Secretary 
 
              P1184 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-213 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited sealed bids for window treatments for the 
Law Enforcement Center, according to plans and specifications on file with the Grand Island Police 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 28, 2007, bids were received, opened and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Narber Enterprises, LLC, Floor to Ceiling of Grand Island, Nebraska, 
submitted a bid in accordance with the terms of the advertisement of bids and plans and specifications and 
all other statutory requirements contained therein, such bid being in the amount of $19,136.15; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the bid of Floor to Ceiling is less than the estimate for the window treatments. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of Narber Enterprises, LLC, Floor to 
Ceiling of Grand Island, Nebraska, in the amount of $19,136.15 for window treatments for the Law 
Enforcement Center is hereby approved as the lowest responsible bid. 
 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G5
#2007-214 - Approving Change Order No. 14 with Chief 
Construction for Law Enforcement Center
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Lamken

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steven Lamken, Police Chief 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Change Order #14, Law Enforcement Center 
 
Item #’s:  G-5 
 
Presenter(s): Steven Lamken, Police Chief 
 
 

Background  
 

The City awarded Chief Construction the contract in the summer of 2006 to construct the 
new law enforcement center for a cost of $7,406,080. $150,000 of contingency funds was 
provided in the contract to allow for needed change orders during the project. To date 
there is $88,327.60 remaining in contingency funds. Acceptance of change order #14 will 
reduce the contingency funds by $6,080.20 leaving a new balance of $82,247.40. 
 

Discussion 
 

Change Order #14 includes three changes in the construction project. The changes have a 
cost of $6,080.20. Accepting the changes will leave the contingency funds balance at 
$82,247.40. The changes requested are: 
 
The Police Department has requested an expansion of the information technology server 
room to accommodate more equipment than what was previously planned for. The 
request requires expansion of the room, more electrical work and the purchase of a 
second server rack. The cost of the expansion is $11,750.20. 
 
The contractor, Chief Construction has requested ten additional work days due to lost 
productivity during inclement weather. The architect has reviewed this request and said 
that there is justification for granting the ten additional days. There is no cost to the 
contingency fund for the additional days added to the contract. 
 
The Police Department has requested that decorative colored concrete wing walls that 
were to be located in front of the facility be deleted from the project. The walls were 
decorative and served no function. The removal of the walls will not affect the 
appearance of the building. The deletion of the walls produces a savings of $5,670.00. 
 



A summary of the costs of Change Order #14 are: 
 
Expansion of IT server room -                          +  $11,750.20 
Ten additional work days -                                           -0- 
Removal of wing walls -                                   -  $   5, 670.00 
 
             Total Cost -                                              +  $6,080.20 
 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council move to approve Change Order #14. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve Change Order #14 with Chief Construction for the sum of $6,080.20 
for: expanding the IT server room, granting the contractor ten additional work days, and 
deleting the colored concrete wing walls in front of the building from the project. 







 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-214 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 2, 2006, by Resolution 2006-151, the City of Grand Island awarded 
a bid in the total amount of $7,406,080.00 (including alternate bids 2 and 3) for the construction of a Law 
Enforcement Center to Chief Construction Company of Grand Island, Nebraska; and 
 
 WHEREAS, included in the $7,406,080 bid was a construction contingency of $150,000; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 7, 2007, by Resolution 2007-180, the City of Grand Island 
approved Change Order No. 13 to locate a roof drain in the multipurpose room; replace aluminum wire 
with copper wire to the HVAC units on the roof; and, replace glass window panes in the motorcycle garage 
with etched window panes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to expand the information technology server room, grant the 
contractor ten additional work days and deleting the colored concrete wing walls in front of the Law 
Enforcement Center; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such changes have been incorporated into Change Order No. 14, and will 
decrease the contingency fund to $82,247.40. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor be, and hereby is, authorized and 
directed to execute Change Order No.14 for the construction of the Law Enforcement Center to provide 
the modification set out as follows: 
 
Expand Information Technology Server Room………………………………………………..…$11,750.20 
Grant Contractor Ten Additional Working Days………………………………………………   $         0.00 
Remove Colored Concrete Wing Walls…………………………………………………………..$  5,670.00 
Total……………………………………………………………………………………………….$ 6,080.20 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G6
#2007-215 - Approving Bid Award for Inspection & Permitting 
Software Programs for the Building Department
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Craig Lewis

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Craig A. Lewis, Building Department Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Approving Bid Award for Building Department Permit 

Software 
 
Item #’s:  G-6 
 
Presenter(s): Craig Lewis, Building Department Director 
 
 

Backgro und  
 

This request is for approval of a bid submitted for permit and inspection software for use 
in the Grand Island Building Department. On March 16, 2007 the Department requested 
proposals for a software program that would facilitate the issuance of building permits, 
track inspections, and document the progress of building projects throughout the 
construction process. 
 
Eleven proposals were received ranging in cost from $242,666 to $19,680. 
 

Discussion 
 

The submitted proposals were reviewed by Building and IT staff as well as other 
Departments interested in software with these capabilities. The proposal submitted by 
Terra Scan Inc. of Lincoln Nebraska in the amount of $37,454 is the proposal which 
appears to best meet the needs of the Department and will enhance compatibility with the 
existing GIS system in use by the City and provided by TerraScan. This year’s budget 
includes funds of $50,000 to facilitate this purchase. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the request. 
2. Disapprove or /Deny the request. 
3. Modify the request  to meet the wishes of the Council 



4. Table the issue 
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve this request and allow the 
purchase of permit software from Terra Scan Inc. for the amount of $37,454. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the purchase of permit software for $37, 454 from Terra Scan Inc. of 
Lincoln, Nebraska as submitted. 



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
Dale M. Shotkoski, Assistant City Attorney 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR 
INSPECTION & PERMITTING SOFTWARE PROGRAMS 

 
 
RFP DUE DATE:   March 16, 2007 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Building 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  February 21, 2007 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 11 
 
 SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED 
 
HRG Technology Group  PermitSoft, Inc.   CRW Associates 
Cedar Rapids, IA   Palo Alto, CA    San Diego, CA 
 
TradeMaster, Inc.   Sybatech, Inc.   BUILDERadius, Inc. 
Troy, MI    Springfield, IL   Asheville, NC 
 
CSDC Systems, Inc.   Tyler Technologies, Inc.  Accela, Inc. 
St. Petersburg, FL   Falmouth, ME   San Ramon, CA 
 
TerraScan, Inc. 
Lincoln, NE 
 
 
cc: Craig Lewis, Building Department Director  Jon Anderson, Building Dept. Inspector 
 David Springer, Finance Director   Dale Shotkoski, Purchasing Agent  
 Sherry Peters, Legal Secretary 

 
              P1150 



 
  Approved as to Form ¤  
_______________ 
  September 6, 2007 ¤   City Attorney  

 
  

 R E S O L U T I O N   2007-215 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited proposals for permit and inspection software, 
according to Request for Proposals on file with the Building Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 16, 2007, proposals were received, reviewed and evaluated in 
accordance with established criteria; and 
 
 WHEREAS, TerraScan, Inc., of Lincoln, Nebraska, submitted a proposal in accordance 
with the terms of the Request for Proposals and all statutory requirements contained therein and the City 
Procurement Code, such proposal not to exceed the amount of $37,454.00; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the proposal of TerraScan, Inc., of Lincoln, 
Nebraska, in an amount not to exceed $37,454.00 for permit and inspection software for the Building 
Department is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska on September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________
       Margaret Hornady, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G7
#2007-216 - Approving Authorization for Emergency Sanitary 
Sewer Force Main Repairs on South Locust Street and 10th Street
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steven P. Riehle, City Engineer/Public Works Direc

City of Grand Island City Council



 

 

Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steven P. Riehle, Public Works Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Approving Authorization for Emergency Sanitary Sewer 

Force Main Repairs on Locust Street and 10th Street 
 
Item #’s:  G-7 
 
Presenter(s): Steven P. Riehle, Public Works Director 
 
 

Background  
 

Due to two failures in the sanitary sewer main, the City of Grand Island Waste Water 
Treatment Division was required to perform emergency repairs to the sanitary sewer 
under Locust Street between Oklahoma Avenue and Anna Street/Bismark Road and 
under 10th Street between Custer Avenue and Howard Avenue. The Locust Street sanitary 
sewer main serves approximately 100 residential and commercial properties between 
Pine Street and Greenwich Avenue, from Oklahoma Avenue to Anderson Avenue, while 
the 10th Street main serves approximately 50 residential properties between Custer 
Avenue and Howard Avenue from 10th Street to 15th Street. 
 

Discussion 
 

The Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska was hired by means of a 
purchase order in the amount of $25,000 to effect the necessary repairs to the Locust 
Street failure. And again by means of a purchase order in the amount of $30,000 to effect 
repairs to the 10th Street failure. In both instances contact was made with two other 
contractors, Starostka Group and O'Hara Plumbing. Both were unable to respond 
immediately. The contractor will be paid based on time and materials actually 
incorporated into the repair work. We are requesting permission to use the emergency 
procurement procedures as outlined in Section 27-13 of the City Code. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 



 

 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve usage of the City's Emergency 
Procurement Procedures and pass a resolution authorizing The Diamond Engineering 
Company to perform the repairs. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the use of the City's Emergency Procurement Procedures and 
authorize The Diamond Engineering Company to perform the repair s. 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-216 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Waste Water Division of the Public Works Department needed two 
emergency sanitary sewer repairs for the sanitary sewer mains under Locust Street between Oklahoma 
Avenue and Anna Street/Bismark Road, and under 10th Street between Custer Avenue and Howard 
Avenue; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the estimated cost is $55,000 (actual cost based on time and materials); and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska, has been 
requisitioned to do said repairs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, two other contractors were contacted and were not able to respond 
immediately. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the sanitary sewer repair for the main under Locust 
Street between Oklahoma Avenue and Anna Street/Bismark Road and the sanitary sewer repair for the 
main under 10th Street between Custer Avenue and Howard Avenue by the Diamond Engineering 
Company of Grand Island, Nebraska, with an estimated cost of $55,000 is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute a purchase order for such project on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G8
#2007-217 - Approving Amendment to Agreement for Waste Water 
Comprehensive Plan Update
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Riehle, City Engineer_Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steven P. Riehle, Public Works Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Approving Amendment to Agreement for Waste Water 

Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
Item #’s:  G-8 
 
Presenter(s): Steven P. Riehle, Public Works Director 
 
 

Background  
 

The Request for Proposals for Engineering Consulting Services for the Waste Water 
Collection and Treatment System Comprehensive Plan Update for the Grand Island 
Waste Water Treatment Plant was published on September 27, 2005. After review of 
submitted proposals, CH2M Hill, Inc. of Englewood, Co was selected. The contract, for 
an amount not to exceed $346,200, was approved by City Council on October 11, 2005 
and notice to proceed was given on October 26, 2005. 
 
Following the notice to proceed, public concern regarding odors originating from the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant prompted an immediate reprioritization of the contracted 
work elements to mitigate a primary odor source, thereby improving the quality of life of 
the citizens of Grand Island. These changes were accomplished within the terms and 
conditions of the original contract.  
 

Discussion 
 

City staff has negotiated an amendment for the City Council’s consideration that modifies 
the scope of the contract but does not require appropriation of additional funds. The 
highest priority items within the original scope will be completed; only items which may 
be delayed without potential adverse impact have been modified. Amendment Number 1 
and the two associated attachments would modify the contracted scope of services to the 
original Standard Agreement for Professional Services dated October 18, 2005.  

The following summarizes the scope modifications detailed in Attachments 1 and 2 of 
Amendment Number 1.  

Overview Table 



Task Description 

Initial 
Task Fee 
Estimate 

Proposed Net 
Adjustment 

Through 
Amendment 

1 

Value of 
Work 

Remaining 
following 

Amendment 
1 

Value of 
reprioritized 

work 
elements 

G1 Project Execution $15,000 $0 $0 $15,000  
G2 Project Management and Quality Control Included With Other Tasks 
F1 Future Flow and Loading Projections $16,500  $9,429 $6,416  $25,929  
F2 Review Regulatory Requirements $8,500  ($1,802) $5,399 $6,698  
F3 Review of Existing Treatment Facilities $70,500  $13,242  $26,039 $83,742  
F4 Treatment and Hydraulic Modeling $27,400  $0  $14,716 $27,400  
F5 Alternatives Analysis and Evaluation $44,500  $30,526  $18,645 $75,026  
F6 Odor Evaluation $17,900  $35,492  $0  $53,392  
F7 Effluent Polishing Study $15,200  ($15,200) $0 $0 
C1 Hydraulic Model Update $23,600  ($1,926) $0 $21,674  
C2 Existing Collection System Hydraulic 

Evaluation $14,700  ($9,729) $0 $4,971  
C3 Future Collection System Hydraulic 

Evaluation $23,100  ($23,100) $0 $0 
C4 Condition Assessment $14,700  $0 $14,700  $14,700  
C5 Hydrogen Sulfide Modeling $23,100  ($23,100) $0 $0 
S1 Reporting & Capital Improvement Plan 

Development $31,500  ($13,832) $17,668  $17,668  
TOTAL $346,200 $0 $103,583  $346,200  

 
Alternatives 

 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution authorizing the 
Mayor to execute the Amendment. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve Amendment Number 1 with CH2M Hill, Inc. of Englewood, Colorado 
under the Standard Agreement for Professional Services date October 18, 2005. 



































 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-217 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 11, 2005, by Resolution No. 2005-293, the City Council of the 
City of Grand Island approved an agreement with CH2MHill, Inc., of Englewood, Colorado, to perform 
engineering services for the Waste Water Collection and Treatment System Comprehensive Plan Update; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, city staff has negotiated Amendment No. 1 with CH2MHill, Inc. modifying the 
scope of the original contract without the appropriation of additional funds. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the amendment to the agreement with CH2MHill, 
Inc., of Englewood, Colorado, is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute the amendment to the agreement for such services on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G9
#2007-218 - Approving Application for 2007 Transportation 
Enhancement Program Grant
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Paustian; Joni Kuzma

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:   Steve Paustian, Park and Recreation Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Resolution Authorizing Staff to Apply for Trail Grant 
 
Item #’s:  G-9 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Paustian, Park and Recreation Director 
 
 

Background  
 

One of the requirements for applying for grant funding for trail construction is to receive 
authorization to apply from the City Council. 
 

Discussion 
 

It is the intention of the Park and Recreation Department to construct a trail addition connecting 
the State Street Trail to the new trail addition associated with the Capital Avenue widening 
project (see map). Total construction and engineering costs are estimated to be $229,044.50. The 
Federal match (80%) will be $183,235.60 and the City share (20%) will be $45,808.90. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  The 
Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date  
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution authorizing staff to 
apply for the grant. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the resolution authorizing Park and Recreation Department staff to apply for 
the trail grant. 





 
  Approved as to Form ?  _____________ 
  September 6, 2007 ?   City Attorney  

 
  

 R E S O L U T I O N   2007-218 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 10, 1996, by Resolution 96-188, the City of Grand Island 
approved and adopted the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Development Plan, which 
included the development of a hike/bike trail system for the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Parks and Recreation Department to 
construct a trail addition connecting the State Street Trail to the new trail addition associated 
with the Capital Avenue widening project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island is requesting grant funding for such project; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, if granted, assistance would be provided for 80% of the project 
costs, for a total of $183,235.60; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, has available a minimum of 
20%, for a total of $45,808.90 of the project cost and has the financial ability to operate and 
maintain the completed facility in a safe and attractive manner for public use. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island supports the 
construction of the hike/bike trail, and further approves and authorizes an application for 
assistance from the Transportation Enhancement Program for the purpose of constructing such 
trail. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed 
to execute such application and other documentation on behalf of the City of Grand Island for 
such grant process. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska on September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 

____________________________________
       Margaret Hornady, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



Item G10
#2007-219 - Approving Contract with Olsson Associates for 
Engineering Services for Construction of the River-Way Hike/Bike 
Trail
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Paustian

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steve Paustian, Park and Recreation Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Construction Engineering Services for Riverway 

Hike/Bike Trail 
 
Item #’s:  G-10 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
 

Background  
 

The Parks and Recreation Department submitted a grant request to the Nebraska 
Department of Roads to assist in the design and construction cost of the Riverway 
Hike/Bike Trail. The trail will extend from Hall County Park to South Locust Street 
along the Wood River diversion channel. The City was awarded the grant. 
 

Discussion 
 

Following the protocol required for the grant, engineering proposals were solicited. The 
City received five proposals. The proposal deemed most satisfactory as ranked by the 
selection committee was provided by Olsson Associates of Grand Island and Lincoln, 
NE. The State has agreed with the engineering firm selected and has drafted a contract. 
The engineering contract calls for a set fee of $29,957.00 for construction engineering. 
The grant will pay 80% of all costs associated with the contract. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 



Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council award a construction engineering 
contract to Olsson Associates for the design of the Riverway Trail. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the contract to Olsson Associates for construction engineering 
services for the Riverway Hike/Bike Trail. 



































 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 7, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-219 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island received grant approval to assist with the cost of the 
design and construction of the Riverway Hike/Bike Trail which will extend from Hall County Park to South 
Locust Street along the Wood River diversion channel; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island issued a Request for Proposals  for engineering 
services for such project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Olsson Associates of Grand Island, Nebraska, submitted a proposal for such 
project in accordance with the Request for Proposals in the amount of $29,957.00; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of Nebraska Department of Roads has agreed with selection of 
Olsson Associates for such project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is responsible for 20% of the project costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Consultant Agreement with Olsson Associates to perform engineering work 
for such project has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Consultant Agreement with Olsson Associates 
of Grand Island and Lincoln, Nebraska for engineering consulting work for the design and construction of 
the Riverway Hike/Bike Trail, is hereby approved at a cost of $29,957.00. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G11
#2007-220 - Approving Bid Award - High Energy Piping 
Inspection - Platte Generating Station
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader; Wesley Nespor

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From: Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 Wesley Nespor, Asst. City Attorney/Purchasing 
 
Meeting: September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: High Energy Piping Inspection – Platte Generating 

Station 
 
Item #’s: G-11 
 
Presenter(s): Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 
 

Background  
 

Platte Generating Station is scheduled to be shut down for repairs during the month of 
October 2007. The main steam, hot reheat, and cold reheat piping supply steam to the 
turbine from the boiler at pressures over 1800 pounds per square inch and 1000 degrees. 
Defects in the piping materials can develop after long exposures to these high pressures 
and temperatures. Failure of these piping systems can result in extreme damage to plant 
facilities and injury or death to personnel. Standard industry practice is to perform non-
destructive examinations of these piping systems periodically. The insulation on these 
various piping areas needs to be removed, the piping inspected, and the insulation 
replaced, while the power plant is out of service. These types of inspections have been 
performed on critical plant equipment at Platte, but have not been done yet on the piping. 
Specifications for High Energy Piping Inspection were developed by plant staff and 
issued for bid in accordance with City purchasing procedures.  
 

Discussion 
 

The specifications for the High Energy Piping Inspection were advertised and issued for 
bid in accordance with the City Purchasing Code. One response was received from the 
following bidder. The engineer’s estimate for this project was $150,000.00. 
 
 Bidder Bid Price 
 MHT Access Services, Inc. $120,908.00 
 



The Bid was reviewed by Utility Engineering staff. It is compliant with specifications and 
less than the engineer’s estimate. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve. 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee. 
3. Postpone the issue to future date. 
4. Take no action on the issue. 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council award the contract for High Energy 
Piping Inspection to MHT Access Services, Inc. from Houston, TX, as the low 
responsive bidder, with the bid price of $120,908.00. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve award of the bid of $120,908.00 from MHT Access Services, Inc. for 
the High Energy Piping Inspection as submitted. 



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
Dale M. Shotkoski, Assistant City Attorney 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  August 30, 2007 at 11:00 a.m. 
 
FOR:     High Energy Piping Inspection 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Utilities 
 
ESTIMATE:    $150,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   520 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  August 18, 2007 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 3 
 
 SUMMARY 
 
Bidder:  MHT Access Services, Inc. 
   Houston, TX 
Bid Security:  $6,045.40 
Exceptions:  None 
 

Bid Price:  $120,908.00 
 
 
 
cc: Gary Mader, Utilities Director   Bob Smith, Assist. Utilities Director 
 Pat Gericke, Utilities Admin. Assist.   Karen Nagel, Utilities Secretary 
 Rodger Zawadniak, Utilities Dept.   Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney 
 Wes Nespor, Assist. City Attorney   Sherry Peters, Legal Secretary 
 
              P1185 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-220 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited sealed bids for High Energy Piping Inspection, 
according to plans and specifications on file with the Utilities Department, Platte Generating Station; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 30, 2007, one bid was received, opened and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MHT Access Services, Inc., of Houston, Texas, submitted a bid in 
accordance with the terms of the advertisement of bids and plans and specifications and all other statutory 
requirements contained therein, such bid being in the amount of $120,908.00; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the bid of MHT Access Services, Inc. is less than the estimate for the High 
Energy Piping Inspection. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of MHT Access Services, Inc., of Houston, 
Texas, in the amount of $120,908.00 for High Energy Piping Inspection is hereby approved as the lowest 
responsible bid and the Mayor is authorized to execute an agreement on behalf of the city for such services. 
 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G12
#2007-221 - Approving Renewal of Boiler & Machinery 
Insurance - Utilities Department
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader;David Springer;Wesley Nespor

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
   David Springer, Finance Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject:  Boiler and Machinery Insurance – Utilities Department 
 
Item #’s:  G-12 
 
Presenter(s): Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background  
 
The Utilities Department Boiler and Machinery Property Peril and Fire coverage 
insurance is up for renewal as of October 1, 2007. This insurance is specifically designed 
for Electric Utilities and is readily adaptable to the Water Utility, which is also included 
in the coverage. The Utilities Department’s insurance provider, FM Global, provided the 
attached proposal (attachment #2) for renewal of the present coverage. 
 
The proposal outlines minor changes to the current policy, dealing with clarification of 
definitions of terms, adding coverage for power lines within 1000’ of a substation, and 
increasing total covered valuation by 9% to $360,817,829. 
 
Additionally, in the proposal, there are extensive explanations of terrorism coverage, both 
certified and non-certified. The City Council firmly rejected the terrorism coverage 
several years ago, and it has not been included in subsequent renewals. Price quotes for 
terrorism coverages are provided in the proposal along with a Policy Holder Disclosure 
form (attachment #1) for execution by the City. FM Global requires execution of the 
form, either accepting or rejecting terrorism coverage. The current renewal does not 
include terrorism coverage. The complete policy is available in the Utilities and Finance 
offices for review. The renewal proposal and proposed policy have been reviewed by the 
Legal and Finance Departments. 
 

Discussion 
 

The premium for the renewal of the Boiler and Machinery, Property Peril, and Fire 
coverage is $375,813.00, which is a 2% increase from the current policy premium. 
 



Additionally, FM Global is a mutual company of insureds. Recent good claims records of 
insureds has resulted in a premium refund from the current year in the amount of 
$49,663.00. 
 

Alternatives 
 

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve renewal of the Utilities 
Department’s Boiler and Machinery, Property and Peril, and the Fire Insurance with FM 
Global and, if Council agrees, authorization of the Utilities Director to execute the Notice 
of Terrorism Insurance Coverage form to decline that coverage. 
 

Sample Motion 
 

Motion to approve acceptance of the FM Global insurance for the Utilities Department, 
with authorization to decline the Terrorism Coverage. 

































 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-221 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s Utility Department subscribes to insurance for boiler and machinery 
and property peril and fire coverage; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited proposals for  the renewal of the boiler and 
machinery insurance in accordance with the City’s Purchasing Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the insurance of electric and water utilities facilities is a specialized market with 
a limited number of potential providers; and 
  
 WHEREAS, valuation adjustments resulted in an increased total insured value of property 
from the present amount of $330,222,703.00 to $360,817,829.00;  
 
 WHEREAS, only one proposal was received, that being from the current provider, Factory 
Mutual Insurance Co. of St. Louis, Missouri, in the amount of $375,813.00; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the proposal of Factory Mutual Insurance Co. of 
St. Louis, Missouri, in the amount of $375,813.00 is hereby approved. 
 
  
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



Item G13
#2007-222 - Approving Request of Extension of Time for 
Completion of Water Main District 455 - Park-View Area
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader; Wesley Nespor

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Water Main District 455 – Park-View Area Completion 

Time Extension Request 
 
Item #’s:  G-13 
 
Presenter(s): Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background  
 
The Utilities Department has received a request for time extension on the contract for 
Water Main District 455 installation. The contractor, Starostka Group, requests an 
extension of the completion date to October 12, 2007. A copy of their request is attached. 
 
Water Main District 455 is located along Commerce Avenue, from Blaine Street east to 
Park Drive; and within Pioneer Blvd., from the end of the existing public water main, east 
approximately 750 ft. The project extends an 8” water line and service connections for 
the residences in the area. A map of the district is attached for reference. 
 

Discussion 
 

Although the installation phase of the work has been completed, construction on the 
project has taken longer than originally anticipated. This has been due to significantly 
above normal rains this year. The groundwater in the area has risen over six feet since the 
district was originally created. The rains delayed initial commencement of construction, 
prevented work on some days during the project, and also required some alternative 
construction methods from the planned techniques. Additionally, it was discovered near 
the end of water main installation, that the City owned valve to which the Commerce 
Avenue water main is connected needed to be repaired. That valve was installed over 30 
years ago in anticipation of future construction in the area. 
 
All pipe lines, valves and fire hydrants have been installed, but the line cleaning, 
disinfection, pressure testing, final bacteria testing, and construction area restoration and 
clean up are yet to be completed. 
 



Alternatives 
 

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the requested time extension 
from Starostka Group Unlimited, Inc., for completion of the contract until October 12, 
2007. 
 

Sample Motion 
 

Motion to approve the extended contract completion date for Water Main District 455 to 
October 12, 2007. 







 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-222 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 27, 2007, by Resolution 2007-43, the City Council of the City of 
Grand Island approved the bid of Starostka Group Unlimited, Inc., of Grand Island, Nebraska for Water 
Main District No. 455 [located along Commerce Avenue, from Blaine Street east to Park Drive; and within 
Pioneer Blvd., from the end of the existing public water main, east approximately 750 feet]; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Starostka Group Unlimited, Inc., has requested an extension of the completion 
date for the project, with a new proposed completion date of October 12, 2007; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the developer and city staff believe that the extension request is reasonable 
and should be granted. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the completion date for the installation of Water 
Main District No. 455 is hereby extended until October 12, 2007. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G14
#2007-223 - Approving Contract with AVI Systems for Master 
Control & Studio Relocation
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Wendy Meyer-Jerke

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
 
From:   Jeremy Watson, Audio\Video Technician 
  
Council Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Award Bid for GITV Master Control & Studio 

Relocation Project  
 
Item #’s:   G-14 
 
Presenter(s):  Wendy Meyer-Jerke, Public Information Officer  
 
 

Background  
 

Grand Island Television, also referred to as GITV, has been operational since 1993. 
GITV is classified as a PEG (Public Educational Governmental) station and airs on 
Channels 6 for those citizens who have Charter Cable and can also be seen on UHF 
Channel 56 for those without cable. GITV brings the latest news to the citizens of Grand 
Island and Hall County on governmental, educational, and community related segments. 
Info Channel 12 serves as an interactive bulletin board where community events, 
government and non-profit organization notices, and educational opportunities are listed. 
GITV continues to move forward with the vision of an all digital broadcast quality stud io 
that will provide top notch segments for its viewers.   
 
For the last fourteen years GITV has occupied the space directly north of the Hall County 
Emergency Management/911 Call Center in the basement of City Hall. A recent 
renovation plan has been developed to allow for the expansion of the Emergency 
Management Center and relocation of the GITV master control room and studio. This 
renovation will allow Emergency Management to use the current GITV space for new 
equipment funded through a recent grant. Therefore, relocating GITV into what is the 
current mailroom.  
 
Currently GITV does not have an in-house studio where news or educational segments 
can be taped. The space that was once used for these types of interviews is now occupied 
by the upgraded studio equipment that has been purchased and is used as work space for 
the audio/visual technician. While interviews are many times great to do on-location, 
these shoots take a tremendous amount of set-up and teardown time from GITV staff. In 
addition, many of the non-profit organizations and government divisions that GITV deals 
with are limited on office space and interviews are not feasible to do at their location.  



With the completion of this project, staff time will be saved and GITV will be able to 
hold interviews in a professional and dynamic setting on any desired subject ma tter. On-
location interviews will continue to be done when appropriate to the story but more often 
the studio will be used. 
 

Discussion 
 
The specifications for the Studio/Master Control Design Project including technical 
representation and engineering were issued for bid and a response was received from one 
bidder: 
 
Bidder        Bid Price 
AVI (Audiovisual, Inc.) Systems, Omaha, NE         $68,361.00 
 
Department Staff reviewed the bid for compliance with the City’s specifications. The bid 
of AVI Systems is compliant with those specifications. 
 
Minimal dollars and resources have been put into GITV Channels 6 and 56 and Info 
Channel 12 in the last fourteen years. The City of Grand Island has a “gem” right here in 
their backyard to use to showcase and educate all citizens in Hall County on 
governmental, educational, and community related topics. In order to provide citizens 
with highly professional and broadcast quality segments this proposed engineering and 
relocation project is very much needed. 
 
Costs associated with this project will entail the engineering process, rewiring and 
relocation of current studio to new space and equipment needed for optimal audio and 
video monitoring as well as ensure an efficient and effective master control and studio 
work space. 
 
As part of the engineering phase equipment racks will be relocated, as well as the 
determination of the number of additional racks needed to better utilize space and 
workflow. Also during the engineering process it will be determined if additional video 
and/or audio monitoring is needed to more efficiently monitor video and audio signals. 
The engineering phase will also provide studio lighting recommendations. 
 
Installation and rewiring is also a significant part of this project. Installation will include 
the disconnection of video and audio connecting in the existing master control area and 
relocation and installation of this equipment into new area. This will include the rewiring 
of components connected from the Council Chambers to the new studio space. 
Furthermore, necessary video, audio, and RF lines will be extended from existing master 
control to new location. 
 
A complete set of line drawings and CAD file will be provided upon completion of 
project to the City of Grand Island. A system check and training will also be provided by 
AVI to GITV staff. 
 



There are numerous benefits to this studio/master control design project. By having a 
GITV studio that will have sufficient space, lighting, and audio components, it will allow 
for greater flexibility of staff time and will give a consistent and dynamic look to GITV 
segments. One of the visions of GITV is to hold newscasts similar to the other local 
affiliates. This relocation project will give GITV the capability to do this in an actual 
LIVE setting. Eventually, GITV would also like to look into the possibility of an 
internship program with members of the Community Youth Council, Grand Island high 
school, Central Community College and/or Hastings College students. This relocation 
would give GITV the needed space and technological tools where a program like this 
could be implemented.  With the current space and working conditions this type of 
program is not feasible. 
 
This move will give GITV a significant increase in space and will allow for a much 
needed redesign and reengineering of its current infrastructure and studio. The proposed 
contract will provide a highly qualified team of audio/video technicians to serve as 
GITV’s technical representatives in design, installation, training, and maintenance of the 
master control. AVI has always been responsive to the needs of GITV in a timely and 
professional manner and the same is expected from this project. AVI is a reputable 
company that GITV has worked closely with through two recent upgrades the last few 
years. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee. 
3. Postpone the issue to a later date. 
4. Take no action.  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the bid received from Audiovisual, Inc. for the 
Master Control and Studio Relocation  Project of GITV will be accepted and expenditure 
of funds authorized by resolution.  
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to accept the bid from Audiovisual, Inc. and authorize expenditure of funds by 
resolution. 



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
Dale M. Shotkoski, Assistant City Attorney 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR 
MASTER CONTROL & STUDIO RELOCATION 

 
 
RFP DUE DATE:   June 6, 2007 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
DEPARTMENT:   GITV 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  May 17, 2007 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 3 
 
 SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED 
 
AVI Systems 
Omaha, NE 
 
 
 
 
cc: Wendy Meyer-Jerke, PIO    Jeremy Watson, Audio/Visual Technician 
 Paul Briseno, Assist. to Admin.   David Springer, Finance Director 
 Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney   Wes Nespor, Assist. City Attorney 
 Sherry Peters, Legal Secretary 

 
              P1170 































 
  Approved as to Form ¤  
_______________ 
  September 7, 2007 ¤   City Attorney  

 
  

 R E S O L U T I O N   2007-223 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited proposals for the GITV Master Control and 
Studio Relocation Project, according to Request for Proposals on file with the Public Information Officer; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 6, 2007, one proposal was received, reviewed and evaluated in 
accordance with established criteria; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Audiovisual, Inc., of Omaha, Nebraska, submitted a proposal in accordance 
with the terms of the Request for Proposals and all statutory requirements contained therein and the City 
Procurement Code, such proposal not to exceed the amount of $68,361.00. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the proposal of Audiovisual, Inc., of Omaha, 
Nebraska, in an amount not to exceed $68,361.00.00 for the GITV Master Control and Studio Relocation 
Project is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska on September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________
       Margaret Hornady, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G15
#2007-224 - Approving Memorandum of Agreement with Offutt 
Air Force Base for Aircraft Rescue Training (AARF)
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Jim Rowell

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Jim Rowell, Fire Chief 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Training Agreement 
 
Item #’s:  G-15 
 
Presenter(s): Jim Rowell, Fire Chief 
 
 

Background  
 

The City of Grand Island has a Mutual Aid Agreement with the Central Nebraska 
Regional Airport which provides the authority for either party in the agreement to assist 
the other in the event of fire or other emergency. We have trained with the equipment at 
the airport to provide operational knowledge and experience.   
 

Discussion 
 

The training at Offutt Air Force Base is available, in part, because the Central Nebraska 
Regional Airport is the sight of the helicopter base. The military presence at the airport 
justified the use of Air Force training facilities to prepare firefighters to respond to 
aircraft fire and rescue situations. 
 
The Air Force does not charge a fee for this training. The cost of travel to and from Offutt 
and the cost of fuel to operate the simulator will be the cost to participate in the training. 
The cost of the fuel will be based on the gallons used in the simulations and market price 
at the time of the training. Estimated cost of fuel at $1.8156/gallon would be $5,446.80 
for 3,000 gallons used.  
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 



 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve this agreement. 
 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve the Memorandum of Agreement with Offutt Air Force Base for 
Aircraft Rescue Firefighting Training. 









 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 6, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-224 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island has a Mutual Aid Agreement with the Central 
Nebraska Regional Airport to assist in the event of fire or other emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, because of military presence at the Central Nebraska Regional Airport, 
training for city firefighters has become available at Offutt Air Force in Omaha, Nebraska, for aircraft fire 
and rescue situations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, expenses incurred to participate in the training shall include the cost of fuel to 
operate the training simulator and travel expense; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Agreement has been reviewed and approved for such 
project by the City Attorney's office. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Memorandum of Agreement for Aircraft 
Rescue Firefighting Training between the City of Grand Island and Offutt Air Force Base is hereby 
approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G16
#2007-225 - Approving Purchase of Automation Equipment and 
Supplies with SirsiDynix
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Fosselman

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steve Fosselman, Library Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Approving Purchase of Automation Equipment and 

Supplies with SirsiDynix 
 
Item #’s:  G-16 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Fosselman, Library Director 
 
 

Background  
 

Through previous City Council approval, the Grand Island Public Library has been 
contracting with SirsiDynix (formerly Dynix) since 1993 on a variety of automation 
system needs, including installation of hardware and software to operate the automated 
circulation of items. The purchase of 3M workstations in 1993 was included in this 
arrangement. Since that initial contract, our library has periodically received City Council 
approval for various system enhancements and 3M upgrades. 
 

Discussion 
 

To facilitate the advancement of technologies and staff efficiencies in the library’s 
expanded facility, the library applied for and received a federal Library Improvement 
Grant in the amount of $75,200 to assist in the purchase of two additional 3M selfcheck 
machines and a variety of equipment and supply items to initiate RFID (Radio Frequency 
Identification) technologies for more efficient check in of materials and inventory 
management. This purchase totaling $122,240.50 will allow our library to continue 
operating in the most cost-effective manner and to allow staff to provide other essential 
services to library patrons. 
 
Purchasing through SirsiDynix is recommended because 3M workstations are directly 
linked to SirsiDynix’s database server, purchasing through SirsiDynix assures the library 
of consistent maintenance service regardless of the source of the problem, and discounts 
have been negotiated with SirsiDynix based on previous purchases. Sufficient funds are 
available in the library’s operating budget which includes the $75,200 in federal grant 
funds. 
 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve this purchase in the amount of 
$122,240.50 with SirsDynix. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve a purchase in the amount of $122,240.50 with SirsDynix. 



Name Grand Island Public Library David Tuttle, MLS

Contact Steve Fosselman, Director Senior Marketing Consultant: RFID & Self Check

Address 1 Office:  800-288-8020  ext. 5410

Address 2 Cell:  801-691-8318

City,ST,Zip Email: david.tuttle@sirsidynix.com

Phone

Fax Zone # 5                 100.00$      400.00     

Email Issued 8/24/2007

Quote # GIPL 3M RFID 82407B Exipres 10/23/2007

Prices include product, installation (except tag installation) and first year's support and maintenance.

Unit Total Annual Unit

Qty Description Price Price Maint Maint 

3M - RFID One Tag Solution

RFID Tags

59000 D6-RFID Tag 0.58           34,220.00   

6000 CD8N A/V Disc Tag 1.27           7,620.00     -          

Fast Tagging Station Rental

811 Conversion Station -              

1 Three Month Rental 2,860.00    2,860.00     -              -          

-              

Staff Workstation -              

6 895 Pad Workstation 4,175.00    25,050.00   4,384.50     730.75     

-              

RFID Self Check Systems -              

2 V3 (Tabletop) with laminate top 20,799.00  41,598.00   4,082.30     2,041.15  

-              

Digital Library Assistant (DLA) and DLA Accessories -              

1 803 DLA 7,396.00    7,396.00     801.15        801.15     

Includes: -              

Application software -              

Two 32MB memory cards -              

Battery charger -              

Two batteries -              

-              

1 Digital Data Manager 747 1,639.00    1,639.00     201.60        201.60     

-              

Total Price 120,383.00 

Shipping 1,857.50     

Grand Total 122,240.50 

Estimated Annual Maintenance Contract 9,469.55     

After year 1.

All information contained within this document is confidential 

and may not be shared with anyone outside of the institution to 

which it has been issued. Failure to comply will result in 

nulification of this quotation and all pricing listed therein.



 
  Approved as to Form ?  _______________ 
  September 6, 2007 ?   City Attorney  

 
  

 R E S O L U T I O N   2007-225 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grand Island Public Library has contracted with SirsiDynix (formerly 
Dynix) since 1993 on a variety of automation system needs, including installation of hardware and software 
to operate the automated circulation of items; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the advancement of technologies and staff efficiencies in the 
library’s expanded facility, the library received a federal Library Improvement Grant in the amount of 
$75,200.00 to assist in the purchase of two additional 3M Self Check machines along with a variety of 
equipment and supply items to initiate Radio Frequency Identification, totaling $122,240.50; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the purchase of two 3M Self Check series workstations, along with a variety 
of equipment and supply items to initiate Radio Frequency Identification, for the amount of $122,240.50 is 
recommended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, continued use of SirsiDynix is recommended to assure consistent maintenance 
with SirsiDynix equipment that is directly linked to the SirsiDynix database server. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the purchase of two 3M Self Check V series 
workstations, along with a variety of equipment and supply items to initiate Radio Frequency Identification, 
for the amount of $122,240.50 at the Grand Island Public Library from SirsiDynix (formerly Dynix) is 
hereby approved; and the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute such Purchase Agreement on 
behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska on September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________
       Margaret Hornady, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G17
#2007-226 - Approving Authorization to Negotiate with Funk 
Family LLC for Land Swap with the Parks and Recreation 
Property Located South of the Webb Road Soccer Complex
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Paustian

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steve Paustian, Park and Recreation Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Approving Land Swap with Funk Family LLC 
 
Item #’s:  G-17 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Paustian, Park and Recreation Director 
 
 

Background  
 

Dale Funk, representing Funk Family LLC contacted the Parks and Recreation 
Department showing interest in acquiring land currently owned by the City for land 
owned by Funk Family LLC. This land is located at the South end of the Webb Road 
Soccer Complex. The land that the Funk Family LLC is interested in acquiring has been 
maintained by the owners of Lumbermans, formerly Johnson-Cashway for at least 40 
years. The land the Funk Family LLC wishes to swap is west of the land previously 
discussed (see map).  
 

Discussion 
 

The City would benefit from the land swap as the land the Funk Family LLC is willing to 
exchange is currently used for drainage for the Webb Road Soccer Complex. As this  
request has been originated by the Funk Family LLC, it is recommended that all costs 
associated with the land swap including surveys, Title Insurance and any other expenses 
that may be incurred to complete this transaction be the responsibility of the Funk Family 
LLC. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 



 
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve Resolution #2007-226 
allowing for the land swap. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to approve Resolution #2007-226 allowing for a land swap with Funk Family 
LLC. 





 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 7, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-226 
 
 
 WHEREAS, it is mutually beneficial to trade real estate with adjoining owner, Funk Family, 
LLC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the process of trading real estate requires a public hearing and resolution to 
acquire property and an ordinance to sell property subject to right of remonstrance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that a survey and title insurance search be prepared at 
the expense of Funk Family, LLC, and upon preparation thereof, this matter be set for public hearing in 
accordance with law prior to the acquisition of real estate and the sale of real estate by ordinance subject to 
remonstrance. It is understood that Funk Family, LLC, will be responsible for all costs of any transaction 
approved by Council after hearing and remonstrance. 
 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item H1
Consideration of Request from Melodee Anderson for a 
Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary Modular Office Located 
at 3515 West Old Potash Highway
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-1.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Craig Lewis

City of Grand Island City Council



Item H2
Consideration of Request from Randy & Cynthia Evans for a 
Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary Car Dealership Office 
Located at 1407 West 2nd Street
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-2.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Craig Lewis

City of Grand Island City Council



Item H3
Consideration of Request from Olsson & Associates for a 
Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary Soil Vapor Extraction 
Trailer Located at 373 North Vine Street
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-3.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Craig Lewis

City of Grand Island City Council



Item I1
#2007-227 - Consideration of Approving General Property, 
Parking District #2 (Ramp) and Community Redevelopment 
Authority Tax Request
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-4.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 7, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-227 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Nebraska Revised Statute Section 77-1601.02 provides that the property tax 
request for the prior year shall be the property tax request for the current year for purposes of the levy set 
by the County Board of Equalization unless the Governing Body of the City passes by a majority vote a 
resolution or ordinance setting the tax request at a different amount; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a special public hearing was held as required by law to hear and consider 
comments concerning the property tax request; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City that the property tax request for the current 
year be a different amount than the property tax request for the prior year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the final levy of the Municipality for the fiscal year 2007-2008 for all general 
municipal purposes is set at .238319 per one hundred dollars of actual valuation; and 

 WHEREAS, the final levy of the Municipality for the fiscal year 2007-2008 for Parking 
District No. 2 is set at .023375 per one hundred dollars of actual valuation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the final levy of the Municipality for the fiscal year 2007-2008 for the 
Community Redevelopment Authority is set at .022566 per one hundred dollars of actual valuation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that: 
 

1. The amount to be raised by taxation for all general municipal purposes for the fiscal year 
commencing on October 1, 2007 in the amount of $5,280,591.00 shall be levied upon all 
the taxable property in the City of Grand Island, and based on a current assessed valuation 
of $2,215,765,896.00; and 

 
2. The amount to be raised by taxation for Parking District No. 2 for the fiscal year 

commencing October 1, 2007 in the amount of $9,000.00 shall be levied upon all the 
taxable property within Parking District No. 2, and based on a current assessed valuation 
of $38,502,963.00; and 

 
3. The amount to be raised by taxation for the Community Redevelopment Authority for the 

fiscal year commencing October 1, 2007 in the amount of $500,000.00 shall be levied 
upon the taxable property in the City of Grand Island, and based on a current assessed 
valuation of $2,215,765,896.00. 



- 2 - 
  

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item I2
#2007-288 - Consideration of Additional Engineering Fees with 
Olsson Associates for Water Park Design
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Paustian

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steve Paustian, Park and Recreation Director 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Request for Additional Engineering Fees From Olsson 

Associates 
 
Item #’s:  I-2 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Paustian, Park and Recreation Director 
 
 

Background  
 

The City of Grand Island entered into a contract with Olsson Associates for the design of 
a Children's Wet Play Area at Island Oasis on March 24, 2005. The fee quoted in the 
contract was $42,700.00. Using information provided from an aquatics study by C. T. 
Brannan in 2004, an estimated construction cost of $500,000.00 was used to develop the 
fee associated with the design contract. On September 18, 2006 Olsson Associates 
provided the City with a 1st Amendment To Letter Agreement For Engineering Services. 
The request stated that it was the opinion of Olsson Associates that the actual cost of the 
wet play area at Island Oasis would cost between $1,100,000.00 and $1,300,00.00 to 
construct. Because of this increased construction estimate Olsson Associates determined 
an additional fee of $31,520.00 would be required. Olsson Associates continued to 
provide services and a dispute has now arisen as to the proper amount of payment due.  
 

Discussion 
 

After receiving this request the Park and Recreation Director along with the Recreation 
Superintendent met several times with Kevin Prior, of Olsson Associates to discuss the 
requested fee. The Park Department did not feel the additional fee request was proper and 
declined to sign the letter requesting the additional fees. The City did state that they 
expected a completed set of drawings from Olsson Associates before any final payment 
would be made. The Park Department contacted the City Attorney's office regarding this 
request. After meeting with Kevin Prior and reviewing his hourly costs associated with 
the project, the City Attorney's office offered a settlement payment in the amount of 
$20,000.00 under the authority to resolve disputes granted by City Code Section 27-41. It 
is the Parks and Recreation Departments understanding that Olsson Associates have 
agreed to accept this amount as final payment for the engineering services rendered upon 



approval of Council. Final payment would not be made until final construction drawings, 
approved by the Nebraska State Health Department were given to the City 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council agree to the final payment of 
$20,000.00. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to make final payment to Olsson Associates in the amount of $20,000.00 for 
engineering services for the wet play area at Island Oasis. 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 7, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-228 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a dispute has arisen regarding compensation for engineering services rendered 
by Olsson Associates of Grand Island, Nebraska; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city’s Purchasing Agent has the authority to negotiate settlement based on 
value of services rendered pursuant to City Code Section 27-41; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that $20,000.00 shall be paid to Olsson Associates in 
complete and full settlement for all claims for engineering services arising out of the play area design for 
Island Oasis Water Park conditioned upon delivery of all completed plans for the project. 
 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item I3
#2007-229 - Consideration of Approving Appointment of Jeff 
Pederson as City Administrator and Approving Offer of 
Employment
 

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Brenda Sutherland

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Mayor Hornady 
 
Meeting:  September 11, 2007 
 
Subject: Appointment of City Administrator 
 
Item #’s:  I-3 
 
Presenter(s): Mayor Hornady 
 
 

Background  
 

The City of Grand Island has been without a full time City Administrator since February 
2007. Gary Greer left the City’s employ last February when he took another position in 
Farmer’s Branch Texas. This past July, Dale Shotkoski was appointed as Interim City 
Administrator and has worn two hats as he is also the City Attorney. The City contracted 
with the Mercer Group to conduct the recruitment process. Jim Mercer worked with the 
City’s Human Resources Department to conduct the search. By statute, the City 
Administrator is appointed by the Mayor with the Council’s approval. The City 
Administrator serves at the pleasure of the Mayor and for the Mayor’s term. 
 

Discussion 
 
The City has interviewed three finalists for the City Administrator position. Mr. Jeffrey 
Pederson is being recommended for approval as the City Administrator. Mr. Pederson  
has more than twenty years of municipal experience. He has been interviewed by the 
Mayor and Council. An extensive background check has been completed by the Mercer 
group. If approved, he will begin employment with the City in September. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 



Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council ratify the appointment of Mr. Jefferey 
Pederson as the City Administrator. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Motion to ratify the Mayor’s appointment of Jeffrey Pederson as City Administrator 
under the working conditions set forth in the letter offering employment and the City 
Personnel Rules and Regulations. 



 
 
 
 
September 11, 2007 
 
 
 
Mr. Jeffrey Pederson 
2006 Frederick Drive 
Dodge City, Kansas  67801 
 
Mr. Pederson, 
 
The Mayor of Grand Island, on behalf of the City, is pleased to offer the position 
of City Administrator to you.  The contents of this letter will outline the proposed 
offer of employment.  The City Administrator serves at the pleasure of the Mayor 
and for the Mayor’s term.  Mayor Hornady’s term will expire in December 2010.  
The position is at-will and will be subject to the City of Grand Island Personnel 
Rules and Regulations with the exception of topics that are covered separately 
under this offer.   
 
The City is offering a starting salary of $105,923.18.  This is step 3 of the current 
City Administrator salary table.  This salary will increase an additional 3.5% on 
October 1, 2007.  The new salary will be $109,630.49.  Movement through the 
City Administrator salary range could occur annually after that with satisfactory 
performance evaluations. 
 
The City is offering a car allowance of $500 per month in lieu of mileage 
allowance, divided into two equal payments of $250.  If you agree, the City may 
furnish a vehicle for your use instead of paying an allowance or mileage. 
 
The City agrees to budget and pay the professional dues and subscriptions of the 
City Administrator’s membership to the International City Manager’s Association 
(ICMA) and Nebraska City Manager’s Association (NCMA) and any other 
organizations the employer deems beneficial to the City.  In addition, The City will 
pay for your annual dues to one community service organization on your behalf. 
 
You will be entitled to receive the same vacation leave, medical leave and 
holiday benefits as those accorded to other City employees.  In addition, you will 
accrue at a rate that will provide fifteen days of vacation over the next year and 
the years following.   



 
In the event that the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council, terminates you 
for reasons other than those outlined in the Personnel Rules and Regulations or 
for a conviction of a felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, the City 
agrees to pay, in a single lump sum payment, an amount equal to five (5) months 
of your salary, excluding the City’s obligation for retirement, insurance, benefits 
or allowances for said five (5) month period.  Upon payment of said lump sum, 
you hereby waive and release the City, its elected officials, managers, 
employees, and agents from any and all claims of any nature whatsoever which 
may arise by any reason of such termination, including, but not limited to, an 
alleged breach of contract, violation of any federal law, state law, local law, 
constitutional due process claim that termination deprived you of a property 
interest (such as continued employment), or a liberty interest in your good name 
and reputation.  You are not entitled to compensation if you voluntarily leave 
employment with the City or if your appointment expires and you are not 
reappointed. 
 
In determining the amount of the lump sum payment, the City considered the 
expense of conducting pre- and post-termination grievance hearings which would 
cost the equivalent of one month’s salary; conducting a Laudermill hearing and 
due process hearing which would cost the equivalent of two months’ salary; 
defending a discrimination charge brought under local, state, or federal law which 
would cost the equivalent of one month’s salary; and defending a breach of 
contract claim which would cost the equivalent of one month’s salary.  By 
accepting this lump sum payment, you agree further to voluntarily participate and 
cooperate in the defense of the city, its officials and employees and the 
prosecution of any action or proceeding about which you have knowledge, 
including any litigation related to these actions. This includes, without limitation, 
agreeing to speak with the City’s attorneys regarding the facts of the matter and 
making yourself available for discovery and/or trial.  
 
You will be entitled to receive the same retirement benefits as are accorded to 
other employees of the City.  ICMA will serve as the investment administrator. 
 
In the event you voluntarily resign your position, you shall give a two (2) month 
notice in advance. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Margaret Hornady, 
Mayor 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
_______________________________                        
Jeffrey Pederson 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest:_____________________________        
 City Clerk  
 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 7, 2007 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2007-229 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND 

ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor appoints and the Council consents to the appointment of Jeffrey 

Pederson for the position of City Administrator under the working conditions set forth in the offer of 

employment and the City’s Personnel Rules and Regulations. 

 - - - 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 11, 2007. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item J1
Approving Payment of Claims for the Period of August 28, 2007 
through September 11, 2007
The Claims for the period of August 29, 2007 through September 11, 2007 for a total amount 
of $3,964,784.78. A MOTION is in order.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: David Springer

City of Grand Island City Council



Item J2
Approving Payment of Claims for the Library Expansion for the 
Period of August 29, 2007 through September 11, 2007
The Claims for the Library Expansion for the period of August 29, 2007 through September 
11, 2007 for the following requisitions:

#82     $181,688.74
#83     $       237.80

A MOTION is in order.

Tuesday, September 11, 2007
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Fosselman

City of Grand Island City Council










